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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2008

(Time Noted – 7:01 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of this Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; however, the Board has up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask that if anyone has a cell phone to please turn it off so that we will not be interrupted. And also when speaking please speak into the microphone. We have a microphone in the center and one off to the side. And I would like to inform the public also that the Members of the Board have made all site visits. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


CODE COMPLIANCE: GERALD CANFIELD, JOSEPH MATTINA

Mr. Manley: Madam Chair, if I may ask that the agenda for this evening be modified? May I proceed with that request?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, you may.

Mr. Manley: What I would like to ask is that at the end of the meeting that a special item be added for a Executive Session for this Board to discuss in Executive Session potential litigation perhaps between the Zoning Board of Appeals versus the Town of Newburgh Planning Board with regard to a recent decision by their Board?

Chairperson Cardone: We may add that to the agenda.

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: First I’d like to read a letter concerning the variance application for Northeast Realty Holdings in case anyone is here in reference to that application. 

On behalf of Northeast Realty Holdings we request that the above hearing for the above reference project be extended for one month to the March ZBA meeting. Thank you very much for your consideration of and assistance in this matter.

Do I have a motion to hold it over?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to hold it over to the March meeting.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Would you like me to do a Roll Call on that?

Mr. Hughes: May we have some discussion on that first?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes we may.

Mr. Hughes: Are we required to allow this extension automatically under the terms of our code or are is this an arbitrary decision? Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: Typically you have discretion on whether to grant or not. I think it’s as a general matter when an applicant requests more time that’s typically that request is granted.

Mr. Hughes: There will be no further mailings required and what about the notion to the public and the people that came here tonight for that case?

Mr. Donovan: When a matter is held over the only notice that the public gets is the notice at the public meeting that the Public Hearing is adjourned to a date certain.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for clarifying that for both the Board and the public. And just so the public knows we go out to these sites every place that there is on the agenda.

Ms. Gennarelli: We will do a roll call

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: That motion is carried.

Ms. Gennarelli: That is March 27.

Chairperson Cardone: If anyone is here in reference to that application that will be March the 27th.  

(Time Noted – 7:05 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:05 PM) 


BARBARA CAUFAGLIONE

46 D’ALFONSO ROAD, NBGH







(100-5-56) R-2 ZONE



Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a 16’ x 18’ rear deck.

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening Barbara Caufaglione, 46 D’Alfonso Road.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on February 19th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on February 20th. The applicant sent out twenty-five registered letters, twenty-three were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. You may proceed. First identify yourself and then begin.

Ms. Caufaglione: I am Barbara Caufaglione, I have the house at 46 D’Alfonso Road with my husband and we are asking for a variance to put a deck on the back of the house.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board? 

Ms. Eaton: Do you have a deck on there now that you are removing?

Ms. Caufaglione: No, no.

Ms. Drake: I have a question for the Building Department, when you are calculating area and coverage, does the pool area get included and was that included?

Mr. Mattina: Joe Mattina, Building Department, did you say a pool area?

Ms. Drake: There is an aerial map that shows that there is a pool in the backyard.

Mr. Mattina: That would only be in surface coverage. When I do my calculations, I do building coverage and surface coverage and if it’s not an issue I don’t bring it up.

Ms. Drake: So it’s not an issue here.

Mr. Mattina: No. 

Ms. Drake: Thank you.  

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Are there any other questions or comments from the public? If there is nothing further, I would declare this part of the hearing closed?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing at this time.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:10 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 10:00 PM)

BARBARA CAUFAGLIONE

46 D’ALFONSO ROAD, NBGH







(100-5-56) R-2 ZONE



Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a 16’ x 18’ rear deck.

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On our first application Barbara Caufaglione, 46 D’Alfonso Road seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a 16’ x 18’ rear deck. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Eaton: I don’t see where adding this deck would be a detriment to the neighborhood at all. 

Mr. McKelvey: There are other houses there with decks on them.

Mr. Manley: It seems to be with the character of the neighborhood.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval? 

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 10:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:11 PM) 


NORTHEAST CONSTRUCTION CORP
33 BAIRD COURT, NBGH







(28-5-9) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a new single-family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Northeast Construction Corp.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on February 19th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on February 20th. The applicant sent out ten registered letters, seven were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Please identify yourself?

Mr. Vero: I am Frank Vero from Northeast Construction.

Mr. Cipiteri: I am John Cipiteri from Northgate Construction. I am the foundation contractor.

Mr. Manley: Sir, you are the general contractor and then you’re the subcontractor, is that correct?

Mr. Vero: I am the general contractor.

Mr. Manley: Are you also the homeowner?

Mr. Vero: I am also the owner, yes.

Mr. Manley: O.K. is this home being built for yourself?

Mr. Vero: No, it’s part of a development. We’re builders so it’s built on spec.

Chairperson Cardone: Speak right into the microphone, please.

Mr. Vero: We are builders. We built it on spec.

Mr. Manley: Are you building all the houses in that development or just this particular one?

Mr. Vero: We own three other lots in there.

Mr. Manley: And this is the first one that you built out of the three?

Mr. Vero: Yes.  

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Ms. Eaton: How did this happen?

Mr. Vero: No, excuse me; we did build another house there. We built one of the existing houses there this is our second.

Mr. Manley: O.K. and you still have a third one to go?

Mr. Vero: We have two other lots and they are vacant right now.

Mr. Manley: Thank you. 

Ms. Eaton: How did this error occur?

Mr. Cipiteri: I was hired to do the excavation and the concrete and when I showed up on the job site the stakes were there which the surveyor Tarolli Engineering laid out and they gave us a box to build the house within. And I called Tarolli Engineering to confirm the setbacks, which at the time he told me it was minimum 30 feet side with a total of 80 feet and 50 feet from the road. Built the house within the box, measured off the road 50 feet plus I gave myself another 10 feet and it turned out that there was a Town right of way for 14 feet off the road which he didn’t tell me about and I poured all the concrete, poured all the foundation, did all the excavation and everything is pretty much complete.

Ms. Eaton: And who found it?

Mr. Cipiteri: The surveyor when they did the as-built survey Tarolli came out and told me I was too close to the road and they kind of washed their hands of it and said it’s your fault and stuck me with the bill.

Mr. Manley: Mr. Mattina is that correct? Is there a 14-foot right of way or could you clarify that for me please?

Mr. Mattina: Joe from the Building Department, the only easement I see is from a drainage easement that’s off to the right of the property and has nothing to do with the front yard as far I can tell with the maps I have.

Mr. Vero: I have some maps, do you want to look at them?

(Inaudible)

Mr. Mattina: Joe from the Building Department, once again the measurements are taken from the property line, they assume that between the road and the property line is an easement it’s not it should be roads. It’s just the cul-de-sac is not totally filled out to the property line.

Mr. Donovan: If I could ask this? I am looking at the Mecurio-Norton-Tarolli map dated August 2006, which shows an existing foundation that has a distance to the property line between 46.2 and 49.4 feet. You show it, Joe as 41.2 feet? 

Mr. Mattina: Yes there is a 6-foot covered deck on the front.

Mr. Donovan: Sorry. Now I see it. Thanks.

Mr. McKelvey: It does go from the road though…to the property line?

Mr. Mattina: No, the property line is different than the road. I guess that’s where the mix up is.

Mr. Donovan: So you measured out from the edge of pavement?

Mr. Cipiteri: Yes, I measured from the edge of pavement and added an extra 10 feet but there was a discrepancy of about 13 feet, I guess, from the edge of the cul-de-sac road to the house. 

Mr. Manley: Joe doesn’t a surveyor, when they go out, do they mark the buildable area for a contractor when they come in or no?

Mr. Mattina: Right, they’ll set stakes with like 10 foot offsets and as long as you keep your 10 foot offsets normally you’re O.K. but whether they did it in this instance I don’t know.

Mr. Donnelly: But your testimony that they did stake it.

Mr. Cipiteri: They did, they absolutely staked it out. What they do is they give you a box, a building box and the box is oversized 90 feet wide by 50 foot wide and the house turned out that they built a smaller house which is only 40 feet x 28 feet so you could pretty much build in that box which we did. I built on his front stakes and I called to confirm it and he says yeah, keep it 50 feet off the road minimum and I went 60 figuring I had 10 feet extra, plenty of room. I didn’t know that the cul-de-sac, the road was off that far and I put the whole foundation in. So I am within his stakes, you know, his front stakes.

Mr. Maher: But his stakes don’t take into consideration the radius of the road that’s the problem. If you look at the two front corners of the building box if you put two stakes into the corners of the building box and drew a straight line technically you fall within that but you don’t follow the curvature of the road, the radius of the road there that’s what the issue is. Because the 14-foot distance you are looking at is the difference between your 60 foot you say you are off of the road.

Mr. Vero: Right.  


Mr. McKelvey: Was the porch figured in…to be built there too?

Mr. Vero: I don’t know what measurement you are looking at. 49.1 is without the porch so you’d add the 6 foot for the porch and you’d be over by 4 feet or so.

Chairperson Cardone: I think the question was…’was the porch originally supposed to be built’?

Mr. Vero: Yes it was.

Mr. Vero: If you do look like the way it is, it doesn’t look like it’s close to the road because of the cul-de-sac because this is a 50 foot cul-de-sac so the center of this…it doesn’t appear closer to the road than the other houses because of the bubble of the cul-de-sac. It actually pushes it back 10 feet from the center of the road not from the edge of the road. So it doesn’t appear closer to the road than the other houses on the block. I just wanted to let you know that because of the bubble in the cul-de-sac it pushes it out 10 more feet from the center.      

Chairperson Cardone: You say you have two more houses that are going to be constructed?

Mr. Vero: We have two lots. We still own two lots. They’re for sale. We sold all the property in there to homeowners and then we’ll either build on it or we will sell the property.

Chairperson Cardone: But when you build on it you will certainly consider what you have learned from this one?

Mr. Vero: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Yes. Are these lots further sub-dividable?

Mr. Vero: No.

Mr. Hughes: No provision for blowing out the mushroom and extending the road? 

Mr. Vero: No.

Mr. Hughes: Why did you build so close to the road then when you have 7 acres of land?

Mr. Vero: That piece of property drops off in the back.

Mr. Hughes: We were out there. We’ve seen it.

Mr. Vero: And most of the property goes off to the right hand side and we don’t normally layout the way the property is…the engineer does that. So we don’t have that choice.

Ms. Drake: That and there is a stream beck there also when it drops down.

Mr. Vero: Yes there’s wetlands further back.

Mr. Hughes: So, you own, 9, 10 or 9, 10 and 11?

Mr. Vero: No. We still own lot # 2 and 4, 2, 4 and 9.

Mr. Hughes: So you don’t own the…

Mr. Vero: Excuse me, 1, 4 and 9.

Mr. Hughes: You don’t own these two lots right next door?

Mr. Vero: No, we sold the one piece of property that’s across the street and the one right next to it we built and sold to a homeowner.

Ms. Drake: The existing house next to is the one you built?

Mr. Vero: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. I’d like to read the report from the Orange County Department of Planning:

In this case, the proposed action to expand the existing residence will not have any impact on State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns. And their recommendation is Local Determination.

Ms. Drake: I have one other question. Is the surveyor that you used for construction the same surveyor or engineer that laid out the road?

Mr. Vero: Yes.

Ms. Drake: I mean they did the whole sub-division to begin with, the same engineer?

Mr. Vero: Yes.

Ms. Drake: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Do we have any other questions or comments from the public? If not, I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing?

 Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Vero: Thank you.

Mr. Cipiteri: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:21 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 10:02 PM)

NORTHEAST CONSTRUCTION CORP
33 BAIRD COURT, NBGH







(28-5-9) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a new single-family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Northeast Construction Corp, 33 Baird Court, seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a new single-family residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I would hope that the contractor and the developer and when you own the additional lots would know not to have this happen again on future projects and just be more cautious.

Mr. Vero: Yes.

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to approve the variance.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 10:03 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2008               (Time Noted – 7:22 PM) 


ZINA HERNANDEZ



2 HILL RUN ROAD, NBGH







(73-19-1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yards setbacks to keep two prior built decks.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Zina Hernandez. 

Ms. Hernandez: My name is Zina Hernandez and my property is 2 Hill Run Road and here for the decks, unfortunately we haven’t been able to do anything because of the weather.

Ms. Drake: So you weren’t able to contact the contractor to see if the deck could be reduced in size at all?

Ms. Hernandez: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: I think Mr. Mattina was going to comment on that.

Mr. Mattina: Joe from the Building Department, the deck was inspected by myself and Inspector Zoutis and it can be cut in half its feasible, we have to move the stairs, the landing, all the railings but to reduce it in half it is feasible.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Questions, comments from the Board?

Ms. Drake: Is that something that you’d be willing to do is to reduce the size of the deck?

Ms. Hernandez: Well if that’s what we have to do, that’s what we will do.

Mr. Hughes: I thought we had already discussed that and had agreed that it would be done that way in coordination with Building Department and we would check on the progress.

Chairperson Cardone: We were waiting for that coordination.

Mr. Hughes: So we’ve already taken a ruling on that?

Mr. Manley: I think if it could be done probably it wouldn’t be a bad idea.

Mr. Donnelly: I think in terms of a ruling there has been an informal position of the Board. You haven’t voted on it yet though.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s right. Any other questions or comments from the public? Anything else from the Board?

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to close the Public Hearing at this time.

Mr. Donovan: Actually I think the Public Hearing was already closed. We closed the Public Hearing last month; the issue was going to be whether or not it was structurally feasible to cut the deck in half.

Ms. Drake: Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted –7:25 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 10:03 PM)

ZINA HERNANDEZ



2 HILL RUN ROAD, NBGH







(73-19-1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yards setbacks to keep two prior built decks.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Zina Hernandez, 2 Hill Run Road seeking area variances for the side yards setbacks to keep two prior built decks. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I think that the Board is clear on what we were looking for on this and now I’ll make sure that the applicant is clear on it as well that we’re looking for the reduction and the Building Department was supposed to coordinate that effort with us, that the one deck on the side would be reduced.

Chairperson Cardone: By half.

Mr. Donovan: By half correct. 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion that we approve the variance with the condition that the applicant reduces the deck by half, 50%.

Mr. Donovan: Just for clarification purposes, we’re talking the deck on the south side of the house?

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, toward the front of the house.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: That motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 10:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:25 PM) 


WB INTERCHANGE ASSOCIATES, LLC
ROUTE 300/I-84 (Rte 300/Union 

(THE MARKETPLACE AT NEWBURGH)

Ave/I-84/Brookside Ave/Meadow
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 (60-3-41.3, 41.4, 48, 49.1, 49.22,
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(71-4-8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 71-5-9,








15, 16)
 R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the amount of total square footage allowed for signage and the limitation of the number of pylon and freestanding signs. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next application is WB Interchange Associates, The Marketplace at Newburgh.

Mr. Bainlardi: Good evening, John Bainlardi for Wilder Balter Partners the developer. 

Ms. Gennarelli: John that mic comes off the stand or you can make it a little higher.

Mr. Bainlardi: As you may recall we appeared at the last…

Chairperson Cardone: If you could speak directly into the microphone because this is being recorded.

Mr. Bainlardi: We appeared before your Board at the prior meeting in January at which time we were requesting variances for signage and in connection with our application for a sub-division. I have two members of our team who were unable to attend the prior meeting, vacation scheduling, who would like to address your Board this evening if you are amenable just to address a couple of points. Saul Silverman who is here this evening who is our architect for the project and he would like to make some points regarding our signage application for a signage variance and Larry Wolinsky who is our attorney for the project would like to follow Sol’s brief presentation. 

Mr. Manley: Mr. Bainlardi, if I may just to add something prior to the beginning of the proposal and that was at the last meeting I had made the recommendation that we maybe look at obtaining an outside individual to take a look at the sign requests and kind of coordinate that with the Zoning Board and it was my understanding that that was going to be transmitted back to us in the form of a phone call or an e-mail as to whether or not that would be amicable from your organization and we were told within a couple of days we would hear something and unfortunately there is a lot of, at least from my end, a lot of preparation that goes into this and a lot of work. And if an applicant makes a promise that they are going to get information that really that information needs to come forth because it is very difficult to make a really educated decision without having that information. 

Mr. Bainlardi: We understand that your Board maybe has identified a potential expert to conduct the study, which we will provide all the information that that expert requires.

Mr. Wolinsky: Larry Wolinsky, first of all, if we owed you information before tonight’s meeting, we didn’t get it to you, we apologize for that. We also acknowledge your right to hire an expert if you feel that is necessary to help you evaluate the merits of this application. It was communicated to me that the expectation of the cost of that expert would be borne by the project and if that’s the case then what we would like to know before we give you a final yeah or nay but you are going to do what you want anyway but we want to know exactly what the scope of the representation entails and what the cost for that would be. And then, assuming that is what we think it was intended to be and the cost is a reasonable cost we’ll give our consent. Do you have that information tonight? 

Mr. Manley: Would you like me to go over that Madam Chair or…?

Chairperson Cardone: Would you please?

Mr. Manley: O.K. The reason that I asked the Chair to defer is I spent some time searching for, I was looking three individuals that potentially could provide the necessary information to the Board in order to provide us with some guidance with regard to what would be adequate signage. I was able to come up with two that were able to get proposals back to me. One is Two Twelve Associates located at 902 Broadway, New York, New York. The other proposal was from a Craig Berger, he is with SEGD Client Consulting out of New Jersey. And really the scope that both proposals we’re looking at were to specifically break the project into three subcategories. One would be inside signage on the box stores and determining what is a workable number with regard to visualization, signage that can be seen visible from the outside, from the main highways that the public can see would be a second category and what would be an acceptable limit for that and then the third category would be way-finding or the signs within the complex that would be directing individuals to the different stores and each of these consultants both hit on the exact topic that I was looking at is some signage may require more. For example, way-finding you may require more signage on the inside that’s not going to have an impact versus the impacts or the visual impacts from the outside which you want to decrease perhaps those visual signage. So both of those hit on those topics exactly. Of course, their prices are different and I would have to defer to the Board to review each of these proposals to see which company they feel most comfortable with but the price varied from a price of probably around $6500 or $7000 upwards of about $25,000 for the review process. And those were the two companies that I was able to get proposals from. 

Mr. Wolinsky: Well again our concern is that we…our understanding at least as was relayed to me from the last meeting is that the issue was the criteria in the area variance set of criteria that addressed the minimum necessary to justify the grant of a variance and we’ll be addressing that again somewhat later on when I speak the second time but we just want to…what we don’t want to get involved in is a broader kind of review either that A) that the Planning Board has already conducted and ruled upon and B) that somehow addresses broader issues that raised by the zoning that has caused this to begin with cause I think as you’re probably all aware of because you’ve seen many applications for sign variances in commercial centers. I’ve been practicing in this area for 24 years. I’ve been to this Board not recently but many times over the course of 24 years on sign variances because of that single regulation which has never been changed. So, we just don’t want the scope of that representation to solve, you know we don’t…to solve that entire Town problem. And, then the final…

Mr. Manley: But certainly probably this is one of the more larger sign variances that have been requested within the Town of Newburgh, so naturally do…

Mr. Wolinsky: Quantity wise yes, proportionately it’s probably the smallest. Proportionally by percentage or gross leaseable area I believe it’s the smallest because its about 1.8% of the total gross leaseable area of the entire project whereas others that have been granted in the Town have focused on up to 5%…so, but we’ll get into that…I mean we don’t need to debate that my only point is to keep it narrow in scope and also finally that we can get a time frame. I don’t know if they have given you time frames within which they can conduct this. We see no reason based on our professional knowledge of these issues why something like this could not be conducted and brought to a conclusion within a month.

Mr. Manley: I think that had we had had the approval three weeks ago they might have been able to appear here tonight, one of the two of these firms.

Mr. Wolinsky: O.K.

Mr. Manley: That was my…because both of them were willing to show up but without any go ahead obviously…

Mr. Wolinsky: O.K. Are we able to review the proposals? 

Mr. Manley: I’d be more than happy to give you a copy of it.

Mr. Wolinsky: Yes, that would be great because again if we are being asked to pay for it we ought to just be able to look at that and then we will get right back to you. And even so as not to delay we can get back to you right away and maybe you can figure out a way to engage that person prior to the next meeting.

Mr. Donovan: Because that will be an issue, because the Board is going to need to vote to engage the consultant.

Mr. Manley: And also set the escrow amount. Correct?   

Mr. Donovan: Well, yes and let me just speak to the issue of the charge of this expert, this consultant; the charge has to be consistent with our jurisdiction as the ZBA. So, in other words, they can’t go beyond or they should not go beyond and offer comments that are beyond the charge or the jurisdiction of the ZBA. I mean they are hired to assist us.

Mr. Hughes: If I may? Maybe you can tell us from your opinion what you think your bill of goods should include and then we can determine what our consultants need to review and then we can agree on a price and what we’re really going to cover. Right now…

Mr. Wolinsky: Well...

Mr. Hughes: Let me finish please. Right now, the customer has a need or a want I am not sure what it is and I don’t think it’s a need. I think it’s a want. If you can tell us what you think it is that you need to have to make your project complete then we can prescribe to the person that is going to review your project what the bill of materials requires to be reviewed then you don’t have to spend a lot of money and we know what we are looking for and let me wind the tape back up a little bit too. I thought that your representatives told us that you were going to supply us with some stuff before this meeting and I didn’t see that. Let’s nail things down and make sure we are taking care of business.

Mr. Wolinsky: O.K. Well with all due respect I don’t think its my job to tell the Zoning Board what the Zoning Board needs for the Zoning Board to do its job. So if you’re asking my personal opinion its…you don’t need to hire an expert for this. 

Mr. Hughes: No, I’m asking you for your professional opinion to tell us what you think in a matter of number of signs, on which building and how many square feet, etc.

Mr. Wolinsky: I’m going to do that if you just bear with me for a minute…because we…I’d like to have our architect, Mr. Silverman address, begin to address that issue and then I’ll finish it off for you and I’ll answer your questions.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Good. 

Mr. Wolinsky: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: We want to make this as simple as possible.

Mr. Wolinsky: Great, that’s fantastic.

Mr. Silverman: Madam Chair, Members of the Board, my name is Saul Silverman I am the architect the Marketplace project. I’ve been doing retail architecture in major shopping centers for some 35 years all the way from Tampa, Florida to Port Smith, New Hampshire. The one nearest here that we were involved a lot was all the master planning for the Harriman Commons, just down the road from you. And, we’ve been doing enclosed malls, we do power centers and we do what is called life-style centers. This project in many respects is a campus project that is away from the public streets and in many respects have very little visibility. Especially for the major users that are in this area that you cannot see from here or from here or from the other entrance so the sign identification is very very important to them and to us to make sure that the customers know. We’ve tried and endeavored as we do on every single project to coordinate and be very concise with the signage. All right? We’ve worked extensively with the landscape architect that is the consultant for graphics for the Planning Board at the same time and we’ve worked…tried to work out a formula and if anything the formula we have worked out for the different areas which is the Village Center, the big boxes and then the identification signs at the different entrances are all done as low key as physically possible to allow for safety to be able to read the information. Many of the signs that we have on board at the site at an intersection like this are directional signs to ease the drivers understanding of where they have to go. As a matter of fact, your ordinance does allow for directional signs on site and basically it says that the sign can be 1 foot x 3 foot or three square feet. The signs that we’re using where we consolidate them in a group all are less than that so theoretically we could have a line up of signs in there but all that causes is clutter so we’ve concisely put the signs together to make sure that its safe as the drivers move from intersection to intersection and within the complex itself. One of the other types of signs that we have is a directional sign that is for the pedestrian shopper within here there are three or four locations they’re directories just like you’d see inside the mall. There is a site plan, it locates the stores, it allows the shopper to remain safe and to give them the information that he needs. What we’ve tried to do on drawings like this, this is a typical elevation within the Village Center and if I am standing in somebody’s way I apologize. All right? And you can see the proportion of signs, which are cohesive to allow for identification, yet let the architecture stand-alone. In this particular instance, especially in the Village Center we have in many respects severely restricted the merchants from having an identity outside the scope of a freestanding sign i.e. a Chili’s, i.e. an identification building that they have because we’re trying to create this downtown village. This is the vogue of shopping centers and probably will be for the next twenty-five years. People are trying to get back to a downtown feeling. This in many respects will create a downtown for the Town of Newburgh. All right? Not the City but the Town of Newburgh. This is a place that’s people friendly, automobile friendly, graphic friendly and we’ve tried to present that way and you see the quantity of signs. For instance on the rear of the stores there will be minimum to no signage, on the facades themselves they’re limited to the area that’s allowed for each individual store and in the drawings that we prepared for you there is a chart that basically shows what the proportionate size is according to the code of a sign for that store and what it would be in its largest version and this is what the developers prepare to enforce. That the sign size if its 361 sq. ft. we’ve shown the sign at the 361 sq. ft., it cannot be any larger, we’ve restricted the size of letters depending upon the size. This is what’s done in all shopping centers especially centers of this magnitude. All right? It’s never done arbitrarily. It has to go through the landlord every single sign that’s presented must go through the landlord for its approval prior to it going to the Building Department or a Board for approval…for architectural approval. All right? That’s the overall view of it even on the major tenants themselves you can see on the big boxes the quantity of square footage of signage that relates to a store like this is really very very minimal. We have taken all of the major boxes and we’ve negotiated with them to bring the size of their signs down. All right? In almost all cases, in other cases we haven’t necessarily reduced it for instance if a Penney’s wanted a 4 foot high letter and they’re so far below in the ordinance as to what they’re allowed to have we let it go as a standard sign. But I must reiterate the Planning Board and the Planning Board consultants were very very concerned upon the graphics and the signage of this center and I recognize this…I’ve appeared for many years before the planning board, I’ve never had the pleasure of appearing before the Zoning Board of Appeals, maybe I just was lucky. All right? And, I just…we didn’t require variances. But this is a special project the variances that are being asked for, I believe, I mean as someone that’s been doing this for thirty five plus years they’re minimal absolutely minimal and they’re essential. I am happy to answer any questions for you.

Ms. Drake: (to Mr. Wolinsky) Were you going to speak before we got the answer…ask questions or do you want us to ask questions now?

Mr. Wolinsky: You can ask him questions.

Ms. Drake: On the signage area calculations that we were provided the last time…

Mr. Silverman: Yes?

Ms. Drake: The exterior roadways you calculated out allowable signage as 3304 feet which is what you are allowed to do per the Town Code.

Mr. Silverman: Yes, ma’am.

Ms. Drake: And then you say how many…how much signage you want for the Village Center which then I am going to assume that number matches what you show on that drawing.  

Mr. Silverman: What’s on this drawing for purpose of illustration is actually less. These were the maximums. According to our derivation under the Code, these were the maximum allowable areas so that we could have 12,781 sq. ft. of signage total across the project.

Ms. Drake: We don’t know…

Mr. Silverman: We broke it down. We broke it down for you.

Ms. Drake: But I don’t see that.

Mr. Silverman: O.K.

Ms. Drake: I don’t see what…we understand that you are asking for 12,781 square footage for a variance… 

Mr. Silverman: John, do you want to address the numbers that…? 

Ms. Drake: …and if you go to the box drawings one of those signs on the drawings that we have says that one is going to have a different number that what’s used for the major retailers that’s on this list and nowhere do we know how much of square footage is used for directional signage inside the project nor do we know how much of square footage is actually used for identification on the roadways. I think if we have that type of a breakdown we would then know what you are really asking for and where that is versus the maximum that you feel you need. I mean a variance is for the minimum that you feel you need not the maximum. 

Mr. Bainlardi: On drawing SW-4, if you look at the breakdown, for major retailers we are specific in the total square footage that’s permitted for each building. Building A, for instance, is a total 636 linear feet; Building B is a total of 671 sq. ft; Building C is 717 total sq. ft. and we’ve also created within the big box component a maximum single…a maximum for any one sign based upon the total square footage of the façade upon which that sign is placed.

Ms. Drake: Right and that’s what’s on this sheet also.

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes, and with respect to the Village Center we’ve allocated to each individual retailer square footage for signage based upon the linear frontage of the façade of those buildings. So, if you’re in a 25 sq. ft. component within the Village Center and lets take an in-line…an in-line box something that’s not on end cap you’d have 25 feet of linear frontage on the front of the building, you’d have 25 feet of linear footage on the back, you have a total of 50 linear feet. We then allow that particular retailer to utilize that total of 50 square feet as they deem necessary but we’ve created a maximum so that no, they can’t take all of the square footage and put it into one. So for instance…

Ms. Drake: Yes, that part I understand but if you have say exterior roadways where you came up with 3304 feet…

Mr. Bainlardi: Right.

Ms. Drake: …on your chart, that’s on SW-4…

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Ms. Drake: …you then calculate that and add that with the other square footage to come up with the 12,000 but you don’t tell us what the square footage of the exterior signs and the interior road signs are.  Do they actually add up to 3000 or are they actually less and therefore you don’t need the full 12,000 sq ft variance?

Mr. Bainlardi: Oh, I see, O.K. On the…on the…we haven’t…there’s an excess…there’s an excess only with respect to the 3,304 feet which has been allocated to freestanding signs. I can break that out for you separately and I can break it out both by those signs that are visible from a public roadway and those that are interior. So, I can break that down separately for you. 

Ms. Drake: Because if you don’t need 3,304 feet for exterior signs, they only need 2000 or 1000 why should we give you the 12,000 when you don’t need that because you know what exterior signs you are going to use. And then if you have that extra square footage how do we know you are not going to use it somewhere else inside when you say you are going to stay to a certain size?  

(Inaudible)  

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you just use the microphone? Thank you.

Mr. Silverman: I think I know what you want. I’ll give you a for instance and we can supply this to you.  Building A, which was the JC Penney building does have a sign size and I know this says on the code, I assume, this says on the code 636, you want us...you’d just like to see that the sign area that we are proposing for it is under the 6…or it’s 470 or its 802. I would assume that and we can do that, we can go around and amend it. The unfortunate part about it is that we don’t have all the tenants. We have a Costco, we have a JC Penney, we have a Best Buy but the other stores especially the stores that are within here are not here so what we endeavored to do was to show the largest sign area that would be stipulated for a building of that type. If it was a 40-foot store or a 25-foot store, we don’t have those so I can’t give you the sign. On a JC Penney I can give you exactly what the graphic is.

Ms. Drake: O.K. another example to my question…which letter building is Costco?

Mr. Silverman: Costco should be “E”.

Ms. Drake: Therefore you are saying the “E” Building is going to be 1105?

Mr. Silverman: It can be 1105, it is less and I can give you exactly the sizes of those signs.

Ms. Drake: 1008 but I wasn’t finding that number in here to correlate so I was having a hard time figuring out which building on these plans correlate with the buildings here.

Mr. Silverman: Yes, this chart is basically a maximum. That’s basically what it is. I mean, it may happen as it goes around because we tried to take for instance; we tried to take each of these stores as if they were a retailer and exactly how big those stores would be. But we don’t know that this store “C” may be three units. 

Ms. Drake: Right. Yes.

Mr. Silverman: We recognize though that we’ll have to stay within the scope of what this is as a maximum and stay below it.

Ms. Drake: Right, I guess I was mostly concerned with I just didn’t see how the road signs and the internal signs would actually add up to 3304 feet and that’s what I’m thinking, all right when I was first looking at that I was like all right, this is what you are allowed but yet you’re now adding that into your total but you are now showing me where that 3000 is going to be used. I didn’t really have an issue with the other ones.

Mr. Silverman: Yes. We have a count on... Do you have that? I know we did. The count on the road signs…because we have two of these.

Mr. Bainlardi: I’ll take care of that in a minute.

Mr. Silverman: O.K. fine, yes, we can give you on the road signs exactly because we’ve made the calculation already.

Ms. Drake: Because the variance is for the minimum necessary and if you’re asking for the max you would want that’s an issue for us.  

Mr. Silverman: We’d like to try to convince the Board if possible, number one that we mean well; number two that we’re trying to control the environment of the signs and I guess we’re also asking that if we have a tenant for store number “C” and I’ve allotted him 600 square feet of signs or whatever the number is, we will hold him to that. It may very well be so the Board will be assured that will be the maximum. The certain fellows sign might be 403 square feet…

Ms. Drake: Then maybe I’ll have a better resolution to this in my mind when I know what the road signs will be.

Mr. Silverman: The road signs, O.K., right.

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; could you just use the microphone, we’re taping this. Thank you.

Mr. Wolinsky: I’m pretty good at projecting if I need to.

Ms. Gennarelli: No, it doesn’t go into the tape then, thank you anyway.

Ms. Drake: We have to use the mics for the same reason.

Mr. Wolinsky: Understood. We’ve been required to produce a comprehensive signage plan and that’s what we’ve done here. We don’t…not every single space…guys correct me if I’m wrong…is tentative. So, we’ve been required to use our best judgment as to what a…on certain of the buildings, not every single one…on what the sign square footage should be. So, that’s what we did. So that…that…that is going to be a case of every, you know, every shopping center because every shopping center development normally does not have all of its tenants signed up on it day one so...

Ms. Drake: Right, I understand that.

Mr. Wolinsky: What we’re required to do then is identify a maximum in which we’re willing to hold them to and because I can guarantee you commercial tenants will always try and negotiate for more. So…

Ms. Drake: O.K. On your…

Mr. Wolinsky:  We’re trying to walk that line so to speak.

Ms. Drake: But on your chart you’re saying building “A” is going to this much, the Village Center is going to have this much but in this chart you don’t say how much is the interior roads. Where do you allocate that amount?

Mr. Wolinsky: Yes.

Ms. Drake: For the interior roads, does that fall under the exterior roads of the 3000? I don’t know that and that I need to get my hands around.

Mr. Bainlardi: It’s a valid point. I will calculate the exact amount of the signage as we’ve laid out in the twenty signs. Whatever that amount is we’ll let you know that and I believe that that amount is less than the 3000 of road frontage.

Mr. Manley: See the other issue that I have that I’m looking at from where I am looking at this project is that this process that we’re going through should not have waited until your project was 85 or 80% done. This particular item should have been identified early on in your…in good planning, O.K. a developer knows that they’re going to have a need for signage and that I’m sure that your ...the professionals looked and saw that our signing code perhaps wouldn’t allow for the amount of signage that you would need. So, early on in the process back when you first went, the trigger should have been is, hey, we need to go before the Zoning Board before we decide how much signage we are going to need to find out how much we are going to get. Then once you know how much you are going to work with, for example if a year ago the Zoning Board would have given you a ruling that you get 8,000 square feet, well then you know you have 8,000 square feet to work with and then you’re doing your plans because this is very costly for you to produce all this stuff and you then have your plans and go before the Zoning Board. But now, it kind of puts this Board in a awkward position because you’ve already gone to the Planning Board and already come up with a number and have to, if the Zoning Board doesn’t give you what you want, you then have to go and re-do everything all over again.

Mr. Silverman: Mr. Manley, if I can? This process of derivation of these signs and sign sizes have been going on probably eight to ten months with the consultants to be able to bring before this Board a cohesive package for us. Otherwise it would have been nothing but a wild guess and if it was a wild guess I would embarrass myself to stand before this Board and say ‘I want 8,000 feet, I want 13,000 feet, and I have no backup. I have no way to tell you what I want’. And if I were on the Board I would tell you… ‘Why are you here?’

Mr. Manley: But you would know that early on in the planning…in the planning process you would know that early on.

Mr. Silverman: No, in the planning process remember is a moving target and it has changed many times in the scope of what the planning was, especially in this area as the developer was able to test the market and find out what people would accept, what was being done by competition till we finally were able to derive a plan. Once we were able to derive the plan then we started to pay immediate attention to those items and I say it must be eight or ten months ago when we started with the consultants on this signage. It’s always been an issue and we’ve always been trying to sign it. It would have been literally impossible to come here and just ask for a number a year ago. 

Mr. Manley: So then its your testimony that eight to ten months ago you knew already that the signage was an issue, yes?

Mr. Wolinsky: No, that’s not our testimony, O.K. 

Mr. Silverman: No sir.

Mr. Wolinsky: Our testimony is as follows: that, that what happens in the process is that we cannot come to the Board with a request for quantum of signage square footage until the site plan is fixed and at least preliminarily approved. That’s exactly what happened here, because we don’t know the…we won’t know until the Planning Board signs off on it we won’t know what the configuration of the site plan will ultimately be, what the configuration of the layout of the buildings are, where the drainage facilities will be located, where the roads will ultimately be located. All those things have to be fixed before we can come and make any kind of a viable application before this Board plus we can’t get to this Board in the Town of Newburgh without at least, under my understanding and the way I experienced it, without a referral from the Planning Board. And the Planning Board only refers at the time it grants the preliminary site plan approval on a project like that for that very reason and I think that’s probably correct…the correct way to do it. You wouldn’t want to come in early on. I couldn’t make…I…as an attorney I could not make the proper case or showing for an area variance based on a speculation of what the square footage signages may be so that…the design elements really have to be fixed and what else happens…the other business dynamic which is helpful is that further on in the process when we do have a site plan fixed we typically also have more knowledge of what the tenant requirements are and that is what has exactly happened here. And, that’s why we’re able to make a more…a specific application for signage and we’re happy to answer any questions and try and get that even more specific but that’s the way the process works, doing it early on is just not feasible.

Mr. McKelvey: I think one other question we have is how many signs were going to be on these big box stores? That was one of the things. How many signs are going to be on Costco? And, are they all necessary?

Ms. Drake: And then the other question I had mentioning like you said, some of the businesses have agreed to go to a lower size sign, what would Costco or Best Buy would have wanted and how much has it already been reduced?

Mr. Silverman: I am going to answer your questions at the same time as the gentleman’s.

Ms. Drake: Yes, that’s why I brought it up now.

Mr. Silverman: These are the four elevations of the proposed JC Penney. It shows the signage on all sides and we have agreed with the Planning Board that on the rear facing the highway we would have no signage. That’s this façade right here. This is the façade where it just links to the other building and there are no signs on this façade because the JC Penney is joining on one side. That’s why you see the color that way. This is the main façade that faces the front parking lot. This parking lot and this façade the other one is what faces the Village street, which is this one. That is the total amount of signage for JC Penney. On Costco, we have a similar board, the Costco…the Costco elevations this is the main façade that faces to Route 84 or into the main parking lot, that is this façade. This splay, which is shown on both of these drawings, is the same sign; it’s on a 45-degree angle so it just shows on there. So they have one sign here, one sign here and one sign over here. The Best Buy…yes maam?

Ms. Drake: Is there…there’s no sign going out on the…?

Mr. Silverman: There is no sign on here going out. No. 

Ms. Drake: O.K. 

Mr. Silverman: The Best Buy…this is the main façade which is this parking lot façade. This is the rear. O.K.? This façade is this side from this angle.

Audience Member: Can you hang that up so we can see it?

Mr. Silverman: Yes, sir. And this façade is to the rear down the main slopes coming from the other entrance so they only have three signs also. These signs were severely reduced in size from what Best Buy; all of you that know a Best Buy store this ticket, which is their sign basically usually, fills up this entire triangle.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ve seen their sign.

Mr. Silverman: Yes, so that’s what happens. That’s why we tried to cover all of the signage where we knew it and we reduced it down to make sure it complied with that schedule.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. When you talk, could you just talk into the mic? 

Mr. Silverman: I’m sorry.

Ms. Gennarelli: That’s O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Silverman: Does that answer the questions? At least this one for the moment?

Ms. Eaton: Do you only have commitments from three stores right now for this entire project? 

Mr. Wolinsky: I’m going to let the developer get that.

Mr. Silverman: At this particular point there are only three that I know of that I can work with. O.K. Yes, I know of many other tenants that are being negotiated with and will more than likely be in the center, I’m just not at the liberty of releasing the names. (To Mr. Bainlardi) Is there anything you want to add to that?

Mr. Bainlardi: Typically in the negotiation process with the tenants, the first document that gets signed is a letter of intent. It sets forth the business terms but typically until you get to either the completed lease stage or the completed purchase agreement stage in the instance of Costco that would be a…they are going to purchase and own their pad, we’re not permitted to release that information publicly, the retailers frown upon that. But we have contacted hundreds of tenants and we’ve been in negotiations with I would say at this point dozens that are at various stages of the review. And then also, you know, we’re unable to commit earlier in the process for a lot of this because we weren’t sure of what the final configurations of the buildings were going to be, where they were going to be located. There are some tenants who would like to be in the Village Center and they want to be close to Route 300 some want to be closer to the anchor and until we were able to start to fix buildings it becomes difficult to do deals with a moving target.

Mr. McKelvey: How many of these boxes are going to own their own property?

Mr. Bainlardi: As of right now, the Costco parcel and the JC Penney parcel are the two land…were pad sales. At the current moment, and again in a perfect world the developer would prefer to own and hold onto these. In some instances depending upon who the tenant is and their desirability for the developers and to have them as an anchor, sometimes the developer has to allow the…that particular tenant to own the fee title. They will insist upon it and in many instances will, you know, refuse to do deals unless we can meet those terms.  

Ms. Drake: So therefore, when you mentioned earlier that the landowner, the one that owns the land you’re going control how much signage they have. If JC Penney’s and Costco own their own land, you have no say in who buys that in the future and what sign they’ll put up?

Mr. Bainlardi: No, that’s not really correct and the reason for that is, one, the approval…the tenants have to take and the purchasers take subject to that approval.

Ms. Drake: In the future, or…?

Mr. Bainlardi: That is correct. Everyone in the line takes subjects to the prior approval. Also as part of an overall operating agreement the reciprocal easement agreement the signage ultimately the signage plan will be incorporated into that agreement. That agreement then goes on to the record and everybody is subject to do it because every tenant who is in the center wants to be sure that they are not treated any differently than anyone else and that’s one of the reasons why we try to tie the signage to the square footage of the building because it’s rational, it’s fixed and the way the Ordinance is currently drafted it’s based upon footage, the linear frontage on the street and it can become quite arbitrary. I mean if you add the same exact size property with the same road frontage then on one property you had an 8,000 sq.ft. building and on the other property you had a 4,000 sq.ft. building they’d both be entitled to the same signage. This does not allow that to occur. This allows all the signage for each building to be proportionate based upon its size. So, if you’re 150,000 sq.ft. proportionately you have the same square footage as a 2500 sq.ft. does. 

Mr. Silverman: I think it may please the Board to understand that when they talk about the subdivision of the parcels on shopping centers like that, basically what you are looking at is an imaginary line and its usually a line for financing purposes only. But all of this works together. There are cross operating agreements, there are easement agreements so that everything works together. It’s literally the line that very few people will ever see that line. It’s not in the sand, they don’t maintain their lot and someone else does something else. It’s all done as a cohesive package. All right? I think the Board should also realize that because of the configuration of this shopping center probably from the streets at most is 25% to a third of the signage that will be visible from the street. All the rest of it is internal; it’s completely internal on private property on private roads.

Ms. Drake: That’s why I was asking you how much the square footage of the pylons and the exterior and then interior roadways were.

Mr. Silverman: Exactly and we will give you exactly that. I think you’ll see its about 20, 25 at most 30%.

Ms. Drake: Now…

Mr. Wolinsky: I think I could be a little…probably a bit more specific because I was going to address that issue (inaudible) because I wasn’t here last month so I had sensed, you know, I had sensed and I’ve spoken with these guys that issue of how much road frontage, how much visibility versus how much non visibility and interior was an issue and that we ought to get that out on the table and the reason why is that if we look at the statute that we’re struggling with and that all…that we’re all the time on…that statute is…that statute establishes a relationship between road frontage and building sign square footage. That statutes been around a long time and the purpose of that statute was to address strip shopping centers and to prevent the proliferation of signs in small strip shopping centers. If you think back most of us are old enough to remember how, you know, what shopping centers…the evolution of shopping centers and back in the 50’s, 60’s, etc. shopping centers were more of the linear strip nature and regulations were enacted along those…at those times to make signs related to that road frontage because they didn’t want there to be a whole lot of visibility. Aside from being a lawyer, I am a professional planner, I’m a member of the American Institute of Certified Planners, also grew up in South Jersey and I grew up actually in Camden, New Jersey. I don’t like to admit that too often but…if anybody is familiar with that area when you’re driving you’re driving down something called the Admiral Wilson Boulevard to the Benjamin Franklin Bridge it’s the example of the…the planners always hold it out as the worst example in the entire country of strip shopping and signage because it was just unlimited free for all signage along the way so in reaction to places like that they created these regulations that try to limit these signs to square footage but as the evolution of shopping occurred and you had more, you know, you had more mall type and campus type and center type settings those no longer became really useful. The Town of Newburgh has known it forever The Comprehensive Plan which I’m sure they pointed out to you last time recommends that it needs to be changed, it just hasn’t been done at this time. What I wanted to point out because the first question that I asked these guys when I was looking at this is “well how much road frontage do we have, how much and how much visible signage do we have and do…are we in violation of the visibility standard?” which essentially your sign regulation is. And I asked them to calculate that and what we’ve come up here with is that as you’re well aware there’s 6,609 feet of road frontage which would entitle us to 3,304 square feet of signage. Now the question I ask is, “give me a list of all the sign…the square footage of the signage that is actually visible and where do we wind up?” And actually out of the 3304 requirement we have approximately and when I say approximately this is pretty close and we can give you the actual breakdown if you want it. 2174 sq ft of signage that’s available so out of that 12,000, O.K., that is being requested as part of this application, 2000 is what is actually visible and what is intended to be regulated by this regulation that’s currently in place in the Town of Newburgh. So, we’re actually under, we’re actually under that square footage. It doesn’t work that way anymore here because we have a whole center but the point, the point is in considering this and in asking ourselves the question, what is the real issue we want to grapple with here? Because if the real issue we want to grapple with here is visibility and quantum of signage from a roadway I think we’re in pretty good shape under this plan.

Mr. Silverman: Larry…

Mr. Wolinsky: I’ll be right with you.

Mr. Silverman: Shall I show them graphically what we took off?

Mr. Wolinsky:  Let me just finish this last point. And if its something more than that having to do with the interior of the center which is entirely private and is not visible from public roadways let’s identify that, address what that is as well. 

Mr. Silverman: The area that, Larry is talking…Mr. Wolinsky is talking about basically are these facades, all of these facades and the pylon signs and the monument signs there at the three locations. Everything after that becomes internal signage. So the calculation of the 2000 feet… 

Mr. Wolinsky: It was a little in excess of 2000 feet.  

Mr. Silverman: …is this relationship but including the monument signs at the entrances and the pylons

Ms. Drake: Well if that’s the case then, those signs that are on those facades are already included in these calculations here so you’re counting them twice.

Mr. Silverman: No, the facades…there are no signs on these particular facades.

Ms. Drake: All right, so then there’s no visible signage there and there’s no signage here. 

Mr. Silverman: Well, what we did was we made an allowance that if in fact there was tenant sign on the side door or the rear door or for service we tried to make an allowance for something. The storefront signs are not visible and we didn’t put them into the equation. We made a supposition we tried to do a worst-case scenario.

Ms. Drake: O.K. I guess you’re going to provide how much signage the pylons and the interiors…O.K.

Mr. Wolinsky/Silverman: Yes. (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. I’m sorry; you have to use the microphone.  

Ms. Drake: Sorry if I keep asking too many questions.

Mr. Bainlardi: I will provide that calculation to you tomorrow.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Bainlardi: And to whom should I send it?

Ms. Drake: Betty, I guess.

Ms. Gennarelli: To the Zoning Board. 

Mr. Bainlardi: O.K. Very good.

Mr. Manley: Mr. Silverman.

Mr. Silverman: Sir?

Mr. Manley: I understand there’s six box stores, correct? The big box stores, C, B, Costco, JC Penney?

Mr. Silverman: There are six box type areas.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Silverman: It is very possible that a store like this…

Mr. Manley: It could be split into three or four?

Mr. Silverman: Exactly.

Mr. Manley: Could you please tell me how many of the small, I guess what you call the living center or whatever you want to call that little area to the left.

Mr. Silverman: Lifestyle Center, yes.

Mr. Manley: About how many units are going to be in that so I have an idea of between the larger stores and the smaller stores what we’re looking at as far as units.

Mr. Silverman: I’ll give you a guess…fifty.

Mr. Manley: Five-zero. So you have roughly fifty of the smaller stores and six of the larger clusters?

Mr. Silverman: Six to ten of larger users. 

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Silverman: And the larger user might be clarified only as a 25,000 square footer so it might be that 100,000 feet of space is broken into two stores, three stores?

Mr. Manley: O.K. and it’s my understanding that whatever the amount of square footage if you are going to put four stores in one of those, for simplicity sake, let’s say you get 400 feet of sign for one of those big box and you cut into four equal sizes. Each one would get 100 square feet?

Mr. Silverman: I think we would have to apportion it but yes, at this particular stage we would have to break it down. I think that there would be an adjustment because more than likely one would get 100, one would get 200 in other words there is an area.

Mr. Manley: Even if they were the same size?

Mr. Silverman: It depends upon the tenant, for instance we do a lot of TJ Max and Marshall’s. I saw a TJ Max down in Florida about a week ago where their normal size letter is 5 feet high and there must have a restrictive covenant because on this huge façade, right, there basically was about an 18-inch high letter. I’m certain they are going to go in there; it was a temporary sign that they put up of letters. If a tenant comes in and needs more or different and can’t borrow and stop me if I am wrong and can’t borrow from what we’ve allotted to the space, then he will have to appear before this Board for an adjustment. Maybe it’s a logical adjustment, maybe it’s one that you’ll find graphically is very suitable, maybe the consultants will say please give it to them they need it. But right now all we can do is, we can allot by a storefront area for quantities sold. 

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

Mr. Silverman: That’s we went to what we felt would be the obvious and it has to adjust all the way through.

Mr. Manley: In developing the calculation that you determined to come up with how much each store was going to get, with the smaller stores, the 50 the 50 some odd stores that you were speaking of. I notice that you mention that you used the calculation of the front square foot of the size of the unit and the rear, is that correct?


Mr. Silverman: No, not necessarily. We used it as the Code says that the determination was if it’s on a public street or a street or a parking lot area those facades can be used. And, what we’ll do is we’ll elaborate on our table to show you how we got to these sizes. But if you look in this, even in the chart itself you’ll see on some of them only two or three facades are listed.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Silverman: And that’s the way we derived it because according to the Code we were only allowed to use those facades that were basically publicly visible.

Mr. Manley: O.K. I guess my next question, my last question for you is, is your degree in architecture? You’re an architect? 

Mr. Silverman: I’ve been an architect since 1968.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Silverman: I am also a registered planner.

Mr. Manley: O.K. So now with that, knowing that what standards are being used by you when you looked at signage, can you quote me any standards that are used or any areas that you get your calculations with regard to minimum sign size or the accepted size for visibility from so many feet? Do you have a standard or a book you go to?

Mr. Silverman: No, there generally is no guideline. A lot of it becomes practical experience. As a matter of fact, I did the Newburgh Towne Center here also and all the signage on that also and it was controlled based upon the length of storefront because, as Mr. Wolinsky said, it’s a power center, it’s a strip center and it’s highly visible from the roadway. And all of those signs were also designated for just a certain quantity to each tenant and that was normally derived by a box in front of the tenant not a box type sign because none of those are. All right? It was derived by a box that was 70% the width of the storefront and two feet high, as I remember it. That was the maximum size. What we’ve endeavored to do on the small stores that are throughout here is, as a matter of fact, the developer has come down to 60 foot, the storefront, because the consultants that we worked with were concerned but for the most part our standard on all shopping centers is greater than is shown on these.

Mr. Manley: O.K. so what you are saying is there is no acceptable standard.

Mr. Silverman: No, sir. 

Mr. Manley: Like for example the NFPA regulates for fire protection.

Mr. Silverman: Yes.

Mr. Manley: How many sprinklers you need per square foot. With signage there’s no professional association that comes up with acceptable standards…

Mr. Silverman: No.

Mr. Manley: …for…?

Mr. Silverman: Not for retail, not for shopping centers. Basically you relate it to the Zoning Ordinance, the current Zoning Ordinance and if in fact it’s suitable, all right, then you live with. If it’s not suitable then you have to go and ask for variances.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Thank you. 

Mr. Silverman: You are welcome.

Mr. Maher: I have one question for you. In regards to the directional signs and the Village Center directory, are these multiple sided?

Mr. Silverman: No, they’re one sided. The directory signs, they’re all one sided and on the backside it might say directory. All those signs that you see, like they are illustrated here and here, they’re one sided because for instance the traffic coming this way will be identified this way by the sign that’s here…it will be told straight ahead to Costco, right turn to JC Penney. All right? Exit to Route 52, I mean that’s the whole purpose of it so the people don’t wander around in the parking lot trying to get into places and can’t move so these are all one sided signs.

Mr. Maher: So the backside is just a flat panel? Or…  

Mr. Silverman: Yes, sir.

Mr. Maher: O.K.

Mr. Silverman: The only one that is two sided is the pylon because it stands perpendicular to the road so it can be seen coming either from south on Union Avenue or north on Union Avenue.

Ms. Drake: Now if building “C” when you rent that or get a client, store there and they say we need to own that property will that be an option for them and therefore you would be back to us for a variance for it…?

Mr. Silverman: I honestly can’t that. It…I can assure you... 

Ms. Drake: So there’s an option for them to do that?  


Mr. Silverman: Yes. It would depend upon the needs of the developer at that particular moment.

Ms. Drake: I just want to know if it’s an option if they need it.

Mr. Silverman: Many of the tenants have difficulty with financing packages unless they own the land fee simple.

Ms. Drake: Right. I just didn’t know if you were saying, O.K. nobody else can…?

Mr. Silverman: No, I would say there is a possibility.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: I’d like to do a little housekeeping if I could? For Mr. Wolinsky, this is a discussion, not an argument and I don’t think that what you said earlier is quite true. We get referrals here not specifically from the Planning Board and when they refer you here it’s because there’s a problem not a positive or a negative referral in their declaration for you to come here. There’s other ways too, the Building Department can reject a Permit and they’ll refer the stuff here too so just so the public knows and so that your clients know that’s the not the way you ended up here or why you ended up here. The Planning Board didn’t refer you here with a blessing; they referred you here because you are asking for something that’s illegal. So, this is just some housekeeping so everybody in the room understands what that’s aimed at. You might want to look into those rulings.

Mr. Wolinsky: I will do that.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anything else from the Board?

Mr. McKelvey: Yes. Is Costco going to have a service station? I’ve seen Costco’s with Gas Stations.

Mr. Silverman: The answer to that is yes. Costco just so you know and to the credit of this developer, Costco wanted to put their service station right along the ring road, they were forced to go to the rear of the property basically out of sight. All right, it’s primarily for their customers and we felt there’s no reason in the world that good planning wouldn’t dictate we put it back here.

Mr. McKelvey: I was just curious because I’ve seen Costco’s…

Mr. Silverman: They planned for a gasoline facility.

Mr. McKelvey: …out in Arizona, they have Costco’s.

Ms. Drake: Will there be signs on that then? On the overhead, will there be signs on that for the Gas Stations and Costco, yes?

Mr. Silverman: That’s an interesting question, I am not sure of the answer. I’m really not sure of the answer.   

Mr. McKelvey: I am sure they do and that’s all going to be signage too.

Mr. Silverman: Well that signage we will put in then to the quantity directly. O.K. I do not have a prototype drawing of their facility other than plans.

Mr. McKelvey: I am almost positive the one I’ve seen had signs on there.

Mr. Silverman: Or yeah, it may say Costco Gas or something like that but I say we are well below on this building, what was allotted for the building, well below it. They have two other small signs, one of these wings is for their tire center and they are 12-inch high letters, we accounted for those already. So I will check into that. Absolutely.

Mr. McKelvey: I just wanted you to be aware if they are going to have one, they’re going to have signage.

Mr. Silverman: Yes, I’ll make sure we put it in. 

Mr. Hughes: Another housekeeping item too, just so the public and the applicant can enjoy, the reason that we are trying to nail you down with what’s on the road, what’s on the inside, quite traditionally what we’ve suffered in the past is a developer will come in and now we’ve got fifty stores over here where we were told it was twenty at one time and now there’s six box stores and it was a whole different thing and it seems like there’s all this baiting and switching going on so in order to prevent a problem in the future we are going to make you commit to the total number of square footage of signs for the roadways and for the interior and all that because now four years from now you don’t have fifty stores in there, you have one hundred fifty stores because the little ones have  been hacked down and now you’re back here again looking for signs. We don’t want off segments here. We don’t flashing signs and lights and all the bells and whistles to that’s why we’re putting you through this. We want to know what the real numbers are and your purpose and intent is. We’re not here just to burn up the clock. We want to know what your real square footage and signage is. The best surprise is no surprise. 

Mr. Silverman: O.K. And we will try to give you that as best as possible.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you. We’ll make sure of that.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address. Yes? Mr. Carbone. If you’d go to the microphone?

Mr. Carbone: Did you say comments?


Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Carbone: I also have an old map here and with the Board’s permission I would like to also hang it on the easel.

Chairperson Cardone: Sure. Just for the record, identify yourself. 

Mr. Carbone: I’m sorry. Good evening, I am Frank Carbone from 39 Wintergreen Avenue Town of Newburgh. It’s an old map. An old County map…(inaudible)…might as well give you a copy of this first I have a few copies. Anyway, good evening everyone. Following would be my comments or my testimony here for the Town of Newburgh Zoning Board of Appeals for this evening. I want to make a…it’s not in the record…a comment that I appreciate and a lot of the people out here appreciate all of the effort that this Board is putting into asking these important questions. I haven’t seen anything like this before and I hope that we get answers to a lot of these important questions. I don’t know if this mic is on or not.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, it is, it’s on.

Chairperson Cardone: It’s on, yes.

Mr. Carbone: Anyway, this in the matter of this Marketplace mega mall project adjacent to Routes 300, 84, 52, and other Town of Newburgh roads and neighborhoods. My comments tonight are in response to this proposed numerous signage and related lighting although I didn’t hear too much tonight about the lighting part for the Marketplace mega mall and it’s unspecified number of stores and I guess just a little while ago I think we heard the number fifty. I’m concerned that the Zoning Board has been asked to review certain aspects of this project even though the mega mall project hasn’t yet received approvals other State and Federal Agencies that are part of the approval process. Just today, I received, I don’t it here, I have it with me, a package from the Army Corp of Engineers regarding storm water and wetlands and so forth and I don’t know if everybody here has seen that yet. I don’t know if everybody received it or who. I think it was sent to all interested parties. So they’re asking for comments by the end of next month, I think, or about the 27th so that was just an addition to what I am saying here tonight. Anyway the proposed site of the mega mall is adjacent to and under one of the main landing approaches to Stewart International Airport and also known as Runway # 9 and # 27. The large cargo and passenger planes pass over this proposed site while landing and taking off and I just want to point to the map I’ve got here. It’s an Orange County map of the area and if you look at the cross which is a…I’ll point this out a little closer here…if you look at this cross here, this is the…actually you can call this the main approach. That’s Runway #9 and #27, cuts through here and here is the north south runways. This is the east – west, this is the Hudson River. Actually the Newburgh-Beacon Bridge is right there. What they usually do…large planes come in, they line up after they come over Dutchess County and they pass over the Newburgh-Beacon Bridge, pretty much follow 84 down directly into the airport. The site of this mega mall is right around there, right there. It’s several yards off the main approach. Now they don’t always use the straight in/straight out approach, their own flight rules. When they’re taking off say they’ve got to bank left or bank right over the most densely populated areas in the County. My concern is now, I’m sorry, I’ll back up a little bit. My concern in this case is for the large jets that are landing on Runway #27; they come from the east and Dutchess County over the Hudson River, the Newburgh-Beacon Bridge and generally follow Route 84 towards the main runway. My concern for now is they don’t always follow the same direct route. At times they make a little shortcut, they try to cut it off and they fly directly over this site. They have been doing it for years and coming from slightly different directions. About ten years ago a large flaming cargo plane narrowly missed our neighborhood, which is about two miles from the end of the runway. This site will be about a mile from the end of the runway. Excuse me. That particular cargo plane just barely made it into the airport, broke into three pieces, was completely destroyed by fire and that investigation was totally mishandled. It was a fiasco, what was on the plane, the cargo that was on the plane. Anyway in other incidents, the point I am trying to make is, large jets have attempted landings at other smaller airports in this area and I’ll say Dutchess County Airport a large jet tried to land in that airport. The Orange County Airport another large jet tried to land in that airport by mistake…by mistake. These, it goes without saying, that these smaller airports were not designed for large aircraft. Anyway my concern is for the proposed signage and lighting of this mega mall that’s in an area where there’s never been any lights. Between that point and the airport it’s going to be all land that’s interchange and woods, anyway my concern is for the proposed signage and lighting at the mega mall. Will the lighting be confused for runway lighting at Stewart Airport since it’s so close, one mile to the end of the runway? What does the FAA say about the proposed lighting and locating or site-ing a mega mall within approximately one mile of the end of the main runways? Has the FAA…excuse me; I’ve got to get some water, just finishing up with some kind of a cold or something. I’m sorry. Sorry. There’s a lot of attorneys here tonight, I feel I am out gunned.   

Mr. Wolinsky: You don’t want to get an attorney sick do you?  

(Inaudible)

Mr. Carbone: Has the FAA even been contacted by the Town Board, the Planning Board, the developers, the attorneys or any other agencies? Have they even been contacted? I don’t think they’ve been contacted. Do they have any concerns about this? Do they have any concerns…what I’m saying is about the lighting that we’re using? I’m sure they’ve got concerns. Anyway, it seems to me this is most important since thousands of lives will be endangered if a large passenger or cargo jet, aircraft attempts at landing in inclement weather and mistakes lighting of the mega mall for the main runway of the airport. It’s happened before. This project and others are placing the Town in a position of approving unmanageable projects that will surely impact all Town of Newburgh services and its citizens forever. Is the Town of Newburgh government even capable of managing, maintaining or protecting existing infrastructure, the citizens and the environment? And, I’ll use for example storm water. Bad track record here in the Town of Newburgh. Domestic drinking water, they cannot manage the drinking water here. The sanitary sewage, we have major problems with and I can explain all these and if you have questions I can answer them. The traffic, the crime, the air quality, it’s unmanageable right now. What is it going to be down the road if this gets approved? Do the citizens of the Town of Newburgh and Orange County want or even need another Woodbury Commons type project, in the most populated areas of the Town of Newburgh by the way? Is the Town of Newburgh capable of managing another Woodbury Commons type project in the Town of Newburgh? That’s about it. I’ll close. Thank you for considering my comments and that’s about it.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Mr. Carbone, could you give us a copy of those things you received from the Army Corp of Engineers for review?

Mr. Carbone: I’ve got it with me. Do you have access to a copy machine?

Mr. Hughes: Could you pass that to our Secretary, please?

Mr. Carbone: To the Secretary?

Chairperson Cardone: She will run copies for everyone. Thank you.

Mr. Carbone: All right.

Ms. Gennarelli: Do you have the other that I can make copies of?

Mr. Carbone: Do you want to make them tonight so I can get it back. I am going to need to review it myself. I’ll give it to you as long as I can get it back. 

Ms. Drake: I can print it out off line. I looked at it today during work. I can email it to you.

Ms. Gennarelli: All right. Either way, we’ve got a copy machine here.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anyone else who would like to speak? Yes?

Ms. Kohlmann: My name is Laura Kohlmann and I live at 18 Wintergreen Ave, in the Town of Newburgh and I would also like to commend this Board on all the questions that they have had and I feel that they have done a very good job with answering many of the questions that I have as well. My concern is that during the process of Planning Board Hearings and Public Hearings and site plan approvals or preliminary approvals that this developer has come before the Town over and over again with changes and he even came before the Board with a completely different site plan change when he was supposed to have it completed after the final environmental impact study was accepted based on one site plan, he then came in with a completely different site plan and the Board said, go back to the drawing board and give us what the FEIS approved, of what we approved in the Final Environmental Impact Statement. What I am seeing here tonight is that none of the sub-division variances were proposed during any of the Public Hearings, during the EIS, during the Environmental Impact Statement, none of this was brought up at that time. None of the variances as far as signage, as far as sub-division of the site or included in any of the finding statement and preliminary site plan approval and that a new set of Hearings should be held since now what is proposed is a fragmented project. Now tonight I know you didn’t talk about the sub-division variances. I know that was addressed at the last meeting. However, that is one of the situations that’s again before the Board and until you have a unified project I don’t understand how the Board can consider the variances until everything has been…until you know how everything will function, how the lots will interact, what cross easements requirements will be imposed. There isn’t enough knowledge available with what is going to happen with site plan for the ZBA to approve anything at this time. And I think that you’ve basically been saying you need a lot more information before you can approve anything and I really appreciate that you’re doing that. However, I believe and I believe that a number of people in the community also agree that a Supplemental Environmental Impact Study would be necessary at this time for all the changes that they are putting forth in this plan. Tonight is the first time I’ve heard anything, although there was one sentence perhaps in the Environmental Impact Study, about a Gas Station. Most of have not heard anything about a Gas Station prior to this and I do not believe that Environmental Impact Study included the possible ramifications of a Gas Station on the site when that was accepted and that was put forth in the Public Hearings. No one was able to address that because that wasn’t part of the project. Again, this is a project where they’re building for the sake of building. They don’t know what is going into half the sites that are on there. They are destroying forests. They’re destroying wells. They’re destroying people’s possibly...they’re blasting out a mountain. They may be destroying wells in the course of that blasting. This is a huge project. They don’t have any idea what is going into “C” and “D”, those two buildings that are adjacent to the homes on the top of that hill. And, I really feel that this is an incomplete project and until they decide what is going to happen and once they’ve made these changes with all these different variances that they are asking for and all the different…whether someone is going to buy the process, whether it’s going to become…how the site will change as people decide how they are going to build there, their particular buildings. We need to have a new study done for all of those changes. At least for…especially for the changes where it involves Gas Stations, where it changes where sub-divisions are involved and I would appeal to the Board that they support that, that a Supplemental Environmental Impact Study needs to be done. Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Mr. Weiss

Mr. Weiss: My name is Bennett Weis and I too would like to thank you for your efforts here and how thoroughly you seem to be questioning the signage and I have a question perhaps approaches signage or communication from a little bit different angle. I hope that you’ll bear with me because this is something you may not have thought about or spoken about before with regard to this project. I believe Mr. Silverman described part of this mega mall as being a…I believe the words used as a Village Center or is supposed to approximate a main street. Am I right? Like an old public square or a town square, is that right? Well a public square used to have a real meaning as a physical place now it has a metaphorical meaning the public square. We talk about free speech in the public square and what I would like to ask you to consider is what will happen to free speech in this now privately owned public square? Here is what I am getting at in particular, in the old days the public square was a place where merchants didn’t just have the right to communicate with the public via signs or any other means of communication but the public had a right to communicate with each other. It was a place where someone could stand up on a soapbox and give a speech. It was a place where someone could take a petition and talk to his fellow citizens and address issues of public concern to them the constitutionally protected free speech. That will not exist in this public square unless, unless somebody here and now, whether its this Board or some other jurisdiction says here’s part of the deal we’re giving you this space to use…what we want in return is a guarantee that there will be free speech zones in there. That people will be able to hand out political literature, that people will be able to get petitions. This is not unprecedented. There have been other municipalities that have made such requests. I think its extremely important in light of the disappearance of the public square that this take place and I’m not going to belabor a point here but I’m going to give you a quick anecdote about something that just happened to me fairly recently that I think will perhaps give you a little bit of rubber meeting the road sense of what I am talking about. If one wants to get signatures, let’s say for a school board petition which in my particular case was evident, I went to a mall and I stood in a parking lot and I asked people ‘will you sign my petition I am running for school board’…the mall manager came out…‘you can’t do this here’. I said, ‘give me a break I am getting signatures for a school board petition’. He said ‘you’ve got to get out of here’. I said, ‘I’m not getting out of here’. He called the cops; the Town of Newburgh Police came. The Officer was extremely polite and quite upset. I could tell, I could read his body language. I’ve been around a long time. He didn’t want to tell me to leave. He said, ‘look this is ridiculous, of course, I’ll go see if I could talk some sense into him’. He came back and said, ‘I can’t, the law is that you are trespassing’. I’m trespassing? Where do I go? Where is the public square? Where is the street? Where do you do this? Where do you petition your grievances? Where do you campaign for candidates? I ask that you at least think of a possible way that you could set up a public square, set up, say that if you want to do this…we will have some kind of constitutionally protected speech zone. Of course not indoors, not in the store but in the public areas here, in this public square, this quasi public square that they’re creating. Where people can engage in, where people always been able to engage in our public square namely communication with their neighbors, handing out of literature, polite, non-intrusive sharing of information with your fellow citizens. That’s disappearing, that’s dangerous. Maybe, maybe some one here has the energy to find a remedy to it. I hope you’ll at least think about it. Thanks a lot.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Ghikas: My name is Gene Ghikas; I have property up on Highland Avenue. When I had my lot sub-divided I had a right of way going through my property all the way out to Union Avenue. I had such a hassle and I finally got my right of way back, because at that time Tel & Tel had a 50 foot center right of way on each side of the right away of their poles. Has the Marketplace got the same? I would like to ask if they got their right of way back? Otherwise how can they build if that right of way hasn’t been recorded like mine had to be before I could do anything on my lots? Can somebody give me an…?

Inaudible.

Ms. Gennarelli: Could you just use the microphone, please? Could you just pass him that mic? Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: Maybe just if I could interject for one second? Just to be clear what our role is. One thing I do want to say is before the Zoning Board can act on this matter, this does need to go back to the Planning Board for the… The Planning Board is lead agency for the SEQRA review to address the issues that are in front of the Zoning Board so this Board can’t act until the Planning Board acts in whatever fashion that they deem appropriate relative to SEQRA. The second issue is, just so everyone can recall, that our jurisdiction the jurisdiction of this Board is limited to the variances that are in front of us, the signage variance and the setback variances. That’s all we get to rule on.

Mr. Ghikas: So I would have to go to the Planning Board to find out if it’s been recorded?

Mr. Donovan: I’m not exactly sure what your issue is, so I am not going to tell you the Planning Board is necessarily the right place or not. I am just going to tell you, it’s not germane to our review.

Mr. Ghikas: Where do we get satisfaction from this?

Mr. Hughes: If I may? I think that’s a State issue.

Mr. Ghikas: A State issue?

Mr. Hughes: I think, Gene, if you’ll check in the State of New York there was legislation that was passed in the last couple of years that you cannot build on a right of way, a utility right of way. You cannot deduct the land underneath it and if they maintain that easement you cannot build on it. Whether the easement has been rescinded and turned back or not. You’ll have to hire an attorney or a title company to find that out. 

Mr. Ghikas: And check with the State?

Mr. Hughes: Yes. 

Mr. Ghikas: All right.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments? Yes? Use the mic please.

Mr. Carbone: Frank Carbone again, 39 Wintergreen Avenue. You mentioned questions, if we ask a question, can we expect an answer or no?

Chairperson Cardone: Not necessarily. If relates to what’s under discussion right now…

Mr. Carbone: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: …which would be the signage or also the building area variance, you may ask anything about that if it relates to any of those two things.

Mr. Carbone: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: As our attorney said, this has to go back to the Planning Board before we could make any ruling.

Mr. Carbone: O.K. Again, my comments tonight are in response to the proposed numerous signage and related lighting of the signage because at the last meeting we discussed lighting of the individual signs that are going to be scattered.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Carbone: And my question then would be again, I posed before and I don’t expect the answers tonight but eventually I expect answers because its documented, how does the FAA feel about this? Will it interfere with the flights coming in? That’s really my main concern, is the proposed signage and the lighting that’s going to be…there is going to be lighting where there has never been lighting before and between this place that’s all lit up and all the individual signs that are lit up and the end of the runway which is approximately a mile there’s not going to be any other lighting, just roads and interchange ends…intersections.

Mr. McKelvey: Lighting would be a Planning Board…

Mr. Carbone: Planning Board again?

Mr. McKelvey: Planning Board it wouldn’t be us. We’re here just for signage right now and variances.

Mr. Carbone: Well, again, what I am saying is this signage is going to have lights. Is the FAA, and I am posing it now, is the FAA interested in a project that’s going to be lit a mile from the end of the runway? Lighting is part of your purview.

Mr. McKelvey: We don’t deal with the lighting.

Mr. Carbone: I thing you are.

Chairperson Carbone: He’s talking about the lighting of the signs.

Mr. Carbone: The signs.

Mr. McKelvey: Oh, on the signs, oh.

Mr. Carbone: Right, for the signs, because it seems like they’re…I don’t know how many signs or what the configuration is but I would think that the FAA should be concerned about this whole project not just…but my concern right now would be the signage and the lighting for the signage of this project that’s before you.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K.

Mr. Carbone: I have other questions, but it may not be…

Mr. Hughes: You have a map hanging up here too.

Mr. Carbone: Yes, I’ll take it with me. It’s an antique. Again the other question, will this lighting for the signage be confused for runway lighting at Stewart Airport? And what does the FAA say about the proposed lighting? I don’t think the FAA has been involved in this project and I think they need to be aware of it. Has anyone contacted the FAA? That is the question.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. 

Mr. Carbone: Have they? Anybody?

Mr. Donovan: Well I am going to assume the answer is no. I’ll give you my best instincts which is the lawyers answer which, I’ll tell you in advance, you may not be happy with but people that are notified are people speaking, agencies that have permitting authority and since the FAA wouldn’t issue any permits relative to this project they typically would not be advised.

Mr. Carbone: We don’t know, we don’t know that. I know they’re concerned about...

Mr. Donovan: I’m trying to give you… 

Mr. Carbone: …elevations.

Mr. Donovan: Elevations, right, yes.

Mr. Carbone: They are concerned about lightings or any kind of perturbances on the ground, they’re concerned about and this is, keep in mind, one mile from the end of the runway and I think everybody if you’ve lived here for many, many years you’ll know what happened at the other end of the runway. How they were concerned about safety and everything so now what we are doing, we’re taking an area that had nothing before except trees and turning it into a parking lot with buildings and lights. It’s going to change the complexion of things on the eastern end of the airport. So, we’re only a mile away. I would think that somebody needs to contact the FAA about this. Thank you.

Chairperson Carbone: Thank you. Do we have any other comments? Anything else from the Board? I would entertain a motion to hold the Public Hearing open next month.

Mr. Hughes: So Moved.

Chairperson Cardone: March the 27th.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

Mr. Manley: Could we just have discussion real quick?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Manley: And that would be the public should be advised because the Public Hearing is being kept open, it is being held open for the purpose of the Zoning Board to be able to obtain more information, specifically maybe from some consultants that may be hired by the Zoning Board. So the public may want to come back tomorrow there won’t be any more notices sent out. They may want to come back next month.

Chairperson Cardone: Next month, not tomorrow.

Mr. Donovan: They can come back tomorrow too, I guess.

Chairperson Cardone: We just won’t be here. 

Mr. Manley: But next month, March the…

Ms. Gennarelli: 27th.

Mr. Manley: 27th.

Chairperson Cardone: And are we clear on the communication that will take place…

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes?

Mr. Hughes: If I may?

Chairperson Cardone: …with Mr. Manley as far as the signage consultants?

Mr. Donovan: Probably not clear on that. Right. So let’s try to…

Chairperson Cardone: I think we need to get that nailed down.

Mr. Donovan: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: I would just like to say something too. I could tell by your reaction that maybe you didn’t promise to give us some information and I may be confused on that but let’s check the minutes and go ahead.

Mr. Donovan: Ron, I think there’s two different issues that we are going to talk about.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, right. 

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: There is some information, that you’ve promised us and the sign consultant. I think they are two separate issues.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s right.

Mr. Hughes: I could tell by your reaction that it wasn’t meshed. Let’s get it cleaned up.

Chairperson Cardone: As far as the signage information, you said you would get that tomorrow.

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. And, as far as the consultants, you were going to get a copy, Mr. Manley to give to them.

Mr. Manley: I can certainly…I may have an extra copy here that I can…

Chairperson Cardone: And you, I understand were going to look it over and then get back to us.

Inaudible.

Ms. Gennarelli: I’m sorry. Can we just use the microphone?

Mr. Wolinsky: Is there one that you are going to go with that we can look at? Because there’s no…we should look at the one that you want to use.

Mr. Manley: I think that’s something that maybe the Board wants to discuss in open session as to what individual they feel most comfortable with.

Mr. Wolinsky: We don’t need to review all your proposals, just the one you want to go with.

Mr. Manley: I included both, just for your edification.

Mr. Wolinsky: Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: Has the Board had an opportunity to review the proposals?

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Why don’t we allow the applicant to make the choice that he wants to pick? 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a preference for…?

Mr. Hughes: We’ve given him a couple.


Chairperson Cardone: Really it’s our decision.

Mr. Donovan: That’s a loaded question.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Wolinsky: We’ll take the one that’s cheaper.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, how did I know you’d say that?

Mr. Hughes: Sometimes it’s cheaper to be expensive.

Mr. Wolinsky: Sometimes. 

Mr. Hughes: You know good judgment comes from experience and a lot of that comes from bad judgment.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. True.

Mr. Manley: I think I’ve kind of had the unfair advantage of being able to speak with both consultants on the phone. I know what you have is only what’s in front of you.

Chairperson Cardone: And what would your recommendation be, Mr. Manley?

Mr. Manley: I thought that Mr. Berger, he is the cheaper consultant but he seemed to have a really good handle when I spoke with him and an expertise in this particular area. I felt that the other company, they’re City located, they are located in New York City. I think that perhaps they’re high in price but low in substance that was my belief. The other gentleman is located closer to Cherry Hill, New Jersey. He seemed to have a good handle on what we were looking for when I explained it to him.

Chairperson Cardone: I trust your judgment on that. 

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Wolinsky: If he’s from Cherry Hill, then he’ll know Admiral Wilson Boulevard, there’s no question about it.

Mr. Manley: I am sure he will.

Mr. Donovan: I’m from Goshen so I don’t know what that means. Is that near Camden?

Mr. Wolinsky: It’s, yeah, its right on the way in, it goes through Camden.

Mr. McKelvey: I trust your judgment.

Mr. Manley: And he has handled signs for a large company in Denver for a large mall that was being built there so…

Ms. Eaton: How did you find him?

Mr. Manley: I found him to be very professional and…

Mr. Donovan: No, she means how did you find him?

Mr. Hughes: In the phone book.

Ms. Eaton: In the Yellow Pages?

Mr. Manley: Actually the attorney for the Town, Mark Taylor, gave me a list of probably about thirty people and I called about twenty of them and only about six returned calls and two returned proposals. That’s how I came up with the two that I have here.

Ms. Eaton: Thank you, Mr. Manley. 

Mr. Manley: You’re welcome.

Mr. McKelvey: But you did talk to both of them?

Mr. Manley: I did speak with both.

Mr. McKelvey: I would trust your judgment.

Mr. Manley: Would you like a motion?

Chairperson Cardone: I would like a motion, yes.

Mr. Hughes: I moved to hold the Public Hearing open already.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s not the one.

Mr. Donovan: That’s the motion on the floor though so you may want to take care of that motion.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Manley: The motion on the floor to continue the…

Mr. Donovan: To continue the Public Hearing to March 27th.

Ms. Gennarelli: We have a motion and a second.

Mr. Manley: Oh, we were in discussion.

Chairperson Cardone: We were in discussion, right.

Ms. Drake: Before we do that, do we need to clarify what items they haven’t…they need to give us?

Chairperson Cardone: That’s what we were trying to clarify.

Ms. Drake: I’ve found items that they owe us from the last minutes. Do we need to do that before we close the Public Hearing?

Mr. Donovan: We are not closing the Public Hearing we are extending the Public Hearing.

Ms. Drake: That’ right. O.K.

Mr. Donovan: And, I need to do one thing at a time or I’m really going to get confused so if you close the Public Hearing, then we hire the consultant, then we make a rule what we need next time. I’ll know what the heck is going on.

Chairperson Cardone: No, we are going to hold it open.

Mr. Hughes: Hold the Public Hearing open.

Mr. Donovan: Did I say close? See, I told you. Open, if it’s O.K? 

Mr. Hughes: Roll Call

Chairperson Cardone: All right, we’ll vote on the motion to hold…

Mr. Ghikas: Can I ask you one question please? Maybe I was asleep. Don’t we have a variance here on the side yard setback?

Mr. Hughes: On the setback, yes, we do. It’s a separate issue.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, we do.

Mr. Ghikas: A separate issue?

Mr. McKelvey: Yes. 

Mr. Ghikas: We’re not discussing it tonight? 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, we are discussing it tonight.

Mr. Hughes: It’s right after this.

Mr. McKelvey: It’s right after this.

Mr. Ghikas: Oh, I’m sorry. I thought you were doing it now.

Mr. Hughes: It’s a two-section thing, Gene.

Mr. Ghikas: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Are you prepared for it or…?

Mr. Wolinsky: I don’t know that there is anything additional we have to submit on that, we can answer questions.

Mr. Donovan: What we did last month was we did them both at once. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: So maybe if there’s comment on it you want to hear that comment.

Mr. Wolinsky: And, there had…if there is any specific comment but there was discussion about it during the last, this last go around.

Chairperson Cardone: I did mention in the comment section that we were doing that they had to be targeting those two issues, the area variance and the signage. So my understanding was that any comments related to that would have been said at that time. 

Mr. Hughes: We’ll finish up with the voting and then go back to the setbacks?

Chairperson Cardone: But if you have further comments on that, the Public Hearing is held open and will be hopefully held open until next month. 

Mr. Hughes: No I was waiting for later for that because I have some issues with that as well.

Mr. Wolinsky: All right, we’ll take them up. Why don’t you finish your sign issues first and then we’ll get into the other?

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Glynn, you had a question?

Mr. Glynn: If I may, please?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Glynn: Excuse me for not standing. It appears to me that you had two different notices here in regard to these hearings.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Glynn: It would have to be two separate hearings. You can’t combine them.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Glynn: If you’ve advertised them differently.

Chairperson Cardone: We did advertise them differently.

Mr. Glynn: Yes, I believe you have to have two separate hearings.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Glynn: You can’t combine them. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: So, right now the motion on the floor is concerning…

Mr. Hughes: To hold the Hearing open.

Chairperson Cardone: …to hold the Hearing open on the signage. Right.

Ms. Gennarelli: Are we ready to finish the roll call?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. Now we’re ready.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. We have a first and a second.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Manley: Now I guess it would be appropriate at this point to make a motion that the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Town of Newburgh engage the services of Craig Berger with SEGD Client Consulting and in doing so would request that the applicant before the Zoning Board of Appeals place in an escrow account to be drawn against for the services for Mr. Craig Berger and request that the amount of the expense be set at …that the amount of the escrow amount be set at $5400.00 (five-thousand four hundred dollars) to cover such services and if need be, we run over somewhat, we would need an additional deposit and I put that in a form of a motion.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: That’s settled. Now we can have discussion on the area variance for the buildings.
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Applicant is seeking area variances for various side yard setbacks for proposed Lot #1, various side yards setbacks, rear yard setback, minimum lot building coverage, minimum lot surface coverage for proposed Lot #2 for a 4 (four) lot sub-division.

Chairperson Cardone: Now we can have discussion on the area variances for the buildings. Mr. Hughes, I believe you have some comments.

Mr. Hughes: I have some issues with that, yes. After all that was discussed at the preliminary meeting I got back and looked at the prints again and I realize what they are saying and the need or the necessity with financing and institutions for the fee simple, the pad site to be owned by the applicants, but now you’ve got some of these buildings that have common walls and may have further common walls if they are further sub-divided and the middle of the road is the property line. Now suppose something happens where those buildings get foreclosed on for some reason or another that’s something out of your limits and out of our limits, it becomes a civil matter then and now we have a road that has a parcel of land that half of the road is owned by one parcel and another part is owned by another. I’m not comfortable with a sub-division of that nature where the property line is in the middle of a road and I’m not comfortable with a sub-division going on where there is a building with a main tenant who common walls through other tenants as well. So, I don’t know what to do with a civil matter of that nature. Mr. Wolinsky, you’re an attorney, you’re familiar with what happens when it gets to that point. Where are you then?

Mr. Wolinsky: (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: I’m sorry. Can you please use the mic?

Ms. Drake: Use the mic, please.

Mr. Wolinsky: Sorry. We’re going to try and explain to you how it works but if I understand your question correctly and everything in this situation is governed by what we call an REA, a Reciprocal Easement Agreement and that REA does not get foreclosed in a foreclosure action. 

Mr. Hughes: How is that separated?

Mr. Wolinsky: It’s its own-recorded lot.

Mr. Donovan: It’s a separate filing, it’s a separate document and all the tenants have to be subject to it.

Mr. Wolinsky: Exactly. Exactly. So everyone takes to that and any foreclosing entity would also have to take subject to that as well. I mean that’s a simple answer.

Mr. Donovan: In other words, it’s superior to any mortgage that any tenant that owns their lot would give as well as to the extent that the owner is building the other buildings hat REA is also superior to any mortgage and its file.

Mr. Hughes: And a superceding agent or whatever you would refer to it as, who does that refer to? Who does that? Right here, the small buildings on the side and then you see the property lines and the yellow and the orange. If that one is a slab and its owned and fee-simple by that entity what happens when they go belly up to the rest of the project? 

Mr. Donovan: Well they have an eyesore.

Mr. Hughes: Well?

Mr. Donovan: I mean, you know.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, but then what does the Town inherit? A non-taxable building, something that’s a white elephant?

Mr. Donovan: No, it’s still taxable. You are still going to get your taxes; the County is ultimately going to make you whole because the County has to reimburse the Town for unpaid taxes so that issue would resolve itself.

Mr. Hughes: All right, but then the three year gamut runs and nobody comes to claims and the County says we’re not going to make it whole any longer?

Mr. Bainlardi: I’m not sure what if I understand the question but I think if you’re concerned about the maintenance of what we will call the common areas and not withstanding the fact that any particular tenant or a potential fee owner will own their parcel, all of the parking areas and other common areas, the access drives, the lighting, the landscaping is all maintained by one entity as part of this overall REA agreement. There’s reciprocal easements that are granted between each one of the buildings that allow unfettered access out to the public roadways as well as the customers and clients that come to each one of these buildings to be able to go onto any other common areas for the purposes of parking, walking and going across the property. In addition, there’s common area maintenance, which is taken care of by one entity. That entity will be the overall property developer. In the initial instance it will be Wilder Balter Partners. If Wilder Balter Partners were to sell the overall shopping center or then whoever came in to buy the center would be that operator. And then the operator would the obligation to maintain all of the common areas in accordance with the Town Code, the Town Law with respect to maintaining the landscaping; keeping the access drives free and clear of snow and ice and debris and maintaining the property in an otherwise in accordance with the Town Law.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering that and I understand your references and inferences about the maintenance but maybe I didn’t ask the question quite properly. For example here…

Chairperson Cardone: Microphone please.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you use the microphone Ron? Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you. We have this building right here that comes out onto the roadway.

Ms. Post: What we do not have…the property line is here and the property line does not include the central roadways. This right here is part of the parking area and it is a roadway of sorts, but its not the…its not the main thoroughfare. We were very careful to make sure that we did not include the thoroughfare, which is a common area. This though also is a common area and as John was indicating would have cross easements so that everybody could use it regardless of ownership. 

Mr. Hughes: This is what you’re requesting to vary on… 

Ms. Post: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: (Inaudible) …zone right here.

Ms. Gennarelli: Ron, I’m sorry.

Mr. Hughes: So one of these buildings defaults or there’s a problem, how do you expect us to give you an approval that might crush the whole site?

Ms. Post: I’m not following, what would crush…every ownership…nobody owns these…nobody can restrict access way through these areas. It’s not permitted through the Reciprocal Easement Agreement.

Mr. Hughes: Do you see the protrusion here and you see that this one sits here?

Ms. Post: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: You’re whittling this down. How would you expect Emergency Vehicles and things of that nature…?

Ms. Post: Well this is…I mean that’s a site plan issue that this…and what we tried to bring forth to everybody last is that the entire site plan was reviewed by the Planning Board and all these issues were reviewed by the various agencies in terms of access, emergency access and so on. Nothing is changing with regard to those…those comments that were made from the various agencies. Everything is staying exactly the same so from an overall site plan point of view this spacing was deemed to be acceptable to the Emergency Vehicles to get through to the property.

Mr. Manley: Under normal zoning circumstances, the way you’re presenting it now those buildings would need larger setbacks because each of those parcels would then be considered individual parcels. Yes?

Mr. Silverman: Can I back up half a step? Mr. Hughes, just so we can clear the air. If this tenant should go out, all that would happen would be these doors would get locked and these doors would get locked that’s all that would happen because of the restrictive covenants and operating agreements. So that the public would have to drive past that store to say, their lights are not on. Every single tenancy is exactly the same. That’s how the developer controls the fact that if a tenant goes dark and it fails, all right, if a tenant moves, it changes nothing as far as the operation of the shopping center. The fact of these, when this line is designated basically this line relates to the mortgage ability of a (inaudible) that gives him X number of cars that are on…at least shown on his parcel. These distances are the distances that actually can’t take place in the side yards because there are common walls and there are buildings adjacent that’s why we are looking for the variances as it relates to the distance between the buildings because we basically have none or its restricted. If we put in an Operating Center where we observe all of the setbacks all the way around this building would be disconnected, there would be nothing but more asphalt between them. The same thing here, the relationship to these stores as in an enclosed mall, all right, the side corridors could be, if you wanted to separate the department store buildings, the side corridors might have to be 100 feet. All right. So this is very, very common and as I said this is an imaginary line. It has no effect whatsoever on the operation of the shopping center. It’s just an ownership and a deed somewhere in the tax records. 

Mr. Manley: But as the Zoning Code is set right now, you’re allowed if it’s one big parcel you can configure it the way you want to configure it right now. But what you’re saying is because of the fact that these stores want to own the parcels that they’re on; you’re seeking to obtain a variance to allow that to happen. Whereas if you didn’t get a variance because you are changing the scope of how you want the…because the Zoning Code doesn’t permit you to do that, if indeed you didn’t have the variance you would have to separate the distances between those buildings would be much greater.

Mr. Silverman: That’s correct. That’s correct. 

Mr. Manley: So, part of the variance, my question would be instead of them owning it, could they have a lease, a 99 year lease of the land that they’re on? And then you wouldn’t even need to be here for the variance.

Mr. Silverman: But that may not be acceptable to the national retailers. It would have a format as well.

Mr. Manley: Well it may not be acceptable but that may be the law in the Town of Newburgh, which then they have to comply with.

Mr. Silverman: I understand that basically what you are asking for here is, we can’t comply…this is a zero lot line…

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Silverman: It can’t be complied with. It can’t be complied with unless we were to like you said we would move completely away from it. Now what happens in the shopping center industry is as soon as we move this retailer away from the anchor this space become much less desirable as soon as we move these…this complex away. People want, the pedestrian wants to come down here, be able to enter the department store and continue on his way. He doesn’t want to have to cross a no man’s land because what happens is they won’t. That penalizes the developer tremendously because he is trying to do a cohesive package and this is an operational thing. The site plan is set up on an operational basis and this is a proven thing. This is all over the nation in every enclosed mall or power center it’s the same thing in every Town and that developer goes into every Town and asks for a variance of those zero lot lines.

Mr. Manley: Right but my thought is can it be achieved in another manner without having to give a variance. A variance being only necessary in extreme circumstances and if it can be leased, if it can be done through a lease agreement where you are leasing the land you’re achieving the same thing without having to get the variance.

Ms. Drake: Well, let me just raise a question from the minutes last month that Mr. Manley had asked and its something that we didn’t actually receive from you and if that will help clarify. Mr. Manley asked ‘do you have any letters from any of the retailers in which you’re seeking these variances for, that indicate they will not move into these properties without owning their own property?’ And you had said, ‘we do not but we can provide them for you’.  That’s something that was said that you would provide for us and I think that if we had something in writing that says no, we definitely can’t move in without owning a property that would give us more basis for addressing this issue.   

Mr. Wolinsky: I just wanted to reemphasize that this is a…an extremely common occurrence. It’s all over your Town already. It’s been done. Again, I don’t want to push that issue but I…it’s every municipality that I…we represent we’ve had the same situation. You asked can it be done another way? Well, of course, I mean if they would agree to a long-term tenancy but that’s not the commercial reality, they just don’t. So you have to deal with it. The only other way to handle it would be for there to be legislative action on the part of the Town to address the issue head on and not make it a zoning essentially a zoning violation in those instances where there are…where they are just sub-divisions for financing purposes which these are. These are paper…these are paper sub-divisions that have no translation into physical land-use issues so, you know, and that’s just…that’s just the way it is and its extremely…its extremely common.

Chairperson Cardone: I think at this time I would like to read into the record the report from the County regarding the setbacks

We advise that the Town should evaluate the application to determine whether all the proposed setback variances are necessary for the proposed development. This may require the applicant to modify the site plan so that more of the proposed buildings are able to meet the required setbacks. And as far as lot coverage, we advise that the Town should review the area of all proposed development and determine whether all of the proposed developed area is necessary. The Town should consider that increases to the maximum lot building coverage and lot surface coverage standards will increase the impacts of development on the neighboring areas. The proposed variances to the Town Codes governing the interchange business do not have any significant inter-community or countywide impacts. We remind the Town that State Law requires any variance granted to be the minimum variance that is necessary. And their recommendation is: Local Determination.

Mr. Hughes: And I might say that I understand that this is a common practice and that these companies do the demographics on the area before they come in and they expect to get this kind of a thing, my question to you is, what can you do to make it a little bit more appealing to us? To put a separation in there where you can eliminate some of these variances.

No response.

Mr. Hughes: Tough question?

Mr. Wolinsky: Not really. I mean it’s a good question but it is…this is one of these situations that it is what it is. If we could, believe me…we do not want to be here asking for area variances if we don’t have to. These are created solely because of these tenant driven needs to own the individual parcels and what that creates which again is a standard common thing. So, we don’t…we don’t…they’re not cut up or they’re not divided in a manner that is more than the pad site that they’re, you know, that they’re asking for. They’re just…they’re just…it just is what it is and there’s really no way to back off of that. And, you know, you know and again it has…it has no relation to any land-use factor. You have to…if you just keep that in mind that there are no…that it functions as a shopping center as a whole. If these didn’t exist this would be thoroughly and totally compliant, coverage wise, yard wise, so the things that are being created are internal to the site, they are a result of these…you know, these lines that are required by the…

Mr. Bainlardi: If I could be a little more specific with respects to really the building that’s creating the variance. Because if you’ve noticed, the Costco building, which is a wholesale club, that particular lot does not require any variances. And that’s because of the nature of that particular business. Costco is a wholesale club. They can be an island unto themselves, they don’t…they like to be in other centers with other uses and other…whether it’s department stores and other big boxes but they don’t have to be. JC Penney is quite different. JC Penney is a department store that wants to be part of a larger entity. They want to be part of the lifestyle center. They want to be right up in it and be a part of it. If we were to separate the department store it’s much less appealing to the department store because now they start to fell like they are an island out unto themselves, which they do not want to be. That’s not the way their business operates. It’s not the way they draw their customers into their store. So they want to really be integrated into the center which is why they are located where they are. They specifically want to be an anchor at the end of the Village Center and incorporated from a pedestrian standpoint where people can come if they are parking in a parking lot on the other side of the Village Center and they walk through, they can walk up into their building on that side entrance.

Mr. Hughes: Well, thank you for elaborating on that. But to me, we’re here to rule on these things and there is a balance and a weighing of the gravity of situations and quite truthfully from where I am sitting here it only appears to me that the benefit to the applicant is that you are going to get more per square foot by leaving it that way and not budging. Can you point out something else that I’m missing? 

Mr. Silverman: I think the only thing that I can point out to you is that if they can’t create planning like this which is standard, it’s better than standard they won’t have a shopping center here. 

Mr. Hughes: And?

Mr. Silverman: There’s no and. This…the positioning I’m…I was in on the JC Penney conversation because we’ve done many stores before and Penney’s is very, very concerned that they’d be part of a mall. There were other major retailers that I sat in on the meetings with also. Everybody said the same thing. We basically want to be approximately 50 or 60 feet so it feels like we’re part of the Town Center. We can’t be out there alone, not the type of retailer that we are. 

Mr. Hughes: Can you give us 50 or 60 feet from the face of one building to the other?

Mr. Silverman: There is more than that now. There’s approximately 60 feet from the face of this building to the face of the Penney’s building.

Mr. Wolinsky: Mr. Hughes, let me ask you this question because I want to…I want to try and help out here if I can. What is the particular harm that you’ve identified that this creates? That you want to resolve?

Mr. Hughes: Well I’m not done asking questions yet so I haven’t really gotten to that part yet.

Mr. Wolinsky: Oh.

Mr. Hughes: But when I get there, I’ll let you know.

Mr. Wolinsky: O.K.    

Mr. Hughes: But what I’m trying to find out if there’s any hooks here. I don’t like have a bag full of hooks. I like something that’s clean, that stands on its own and the project speaks for itself. There is so much stuff going on here it’s hard to stay with it. First of all, when this project started it’s evolved into this chameleon with about six different faces on it. I’m not really sure where we’re at yet. And, now you want to do all of this and I’m not sure if that’s going to work in the long run either. You’re here for your applicant. I’m here for the Town. My job and part of my Board’s job is to protect the interests of the Town. The taxpayers here to pay the bill on the taxes in this place are the stockholders here. We essentially work for them. That’s where we’re different. I’m looking at this project with the protection of our client and you’re looking at this project for the promotion of yours.

Mr. Wolinsky: O.K. I accept that now (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me.

Chairperson Cardone: Microphone.

Mr. Hughes: To me there is just too much stuff here that doesn’t need to be. 

Mr. Wolinsky: Well can you elaborate on that?

Mr. Hughes: Well, I’ve already went over that. I think that… 

Mr. Wolinsky: You’re concern then is the foreclosure issue?

Mr. Hughes: Well, that’s one of them. And the roadways, where these buildings are located, if there is a problem what does the Town end up with and the County?  They are holding something that can’t be worked with.

Mr. Manley: Well I think getting back to initially what was asked at the last meeting, I think that the Board and the public has a right to know what retailers are requiring, in writing to us, indeed I’m sorry we won’t do business here in the Town of Newburgh unless we own the land. I think that’s a fair request to know that this is…

Mr. Wolinsky: And I think John is committed to have that for you.

Mr. Manley: …is something that and on all of the buildings that you want to have the zero lot lines not just on the ones…and to speak hypothetically about a building that isn’t even occupied yet or has a tenant to give you, in my opinion, to give you a zero lot line on something like that is…is something… what I’m saying is right now you have some other ones that are vacant, they may in turn want to do the same thing which means you are going to be back here again. I think that the impacts and honestly I don’t know all the impacts and that’s why I think that revisiting the SEQRA process with the Planning Board may uncover some additional items maybe that I am not thinking about. So, perhaps if the Planning Board decides to do a Supplemental Environmental Impact Statement as to how the buildings with the zero lot lines has an impact, I think that will be helpful.  

Mr. Wolinsky: O.K. So essentially on the issue of what harm that this could create, one of the things you’re going to do is wait to hear to see how the Planning Board evaluates it under SEQRA and then consider that.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s correct. 

Mr. Manley: I would like to see that.

Mr. Wolinsky: O.K., O.K.  

Mr. Manley: Is that fair enough?

Mr. Wolinsky: Absolutely. That’s fair enough.

Mr. Manley: There maybe some things identified that may have nothing to do with environmental but it may have more to do with on a mechanical level on how this is going to work.

Mr. Wolinsky: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Where if you had a legal issue between two tenants and you know, there’s a lot of agreements that have to be put in place and things in writing and frankly, that’s your purview and that’s Mr. Donovan’s purview. That’s the legal end of it and that needs to be evaluated. My only other question is, Mr. Canfield or Mr. Mattina, do you have anything from a building standpoint by granting this that this may be, from a Town perspective, that you can see some issue, or?

Mr. Canfield: I have nothing at this time.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: One of other things too, that I didn’t hear anything about at all is that Gas Station until this week and there’s a (20) twenty-mile long stream that whisks right by the eastside of that property that feeds the Hudson River. It comes from all the way from Plattekill and there’s millions of gallons of water there every day that are going to be affected in their criticality by the degree temperature that this parking lot is going to create and now a Gas Station which means that they’ll be cars coming in and out of there just to go to fuel and for maybe some other things but I don’t know what kind of effect that’s going to have on the impact of the entire property.

Mr. Wolinsky: My clients, I reached back, my client has just confirmed that the Gas Station has been on the plan, the site plan for two and one-half years, so…and, you know, so we can check back into the record and see what we have on that.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I was speaking for myself only. I only found out about the Gas Station now.

Mr. McKelvey: I found out about it because I was at a Planning Board meeting when you wanted to put it out front and they told you had to reevaluate it. 

Mr. Wolinsky: Yeah, well.

Mr. McKelvey: That you had to go back and do it over. 

Mr. Wolinsky: That was a good comment and they said…

Mr. Hughes: You can understand our apprehension here because things keep moving and changing all the time.

Mr. Wolinsky: …that was a good comment and they did it, you know. Pardon me?

Mr. Hughes: The story keeps changing all the time and you know that attracts a little bit more of attention to it.

Mr. Wolinsky: You know, when you do a project of this size and complexity it will change over, it does. It does change, that’s the nature of the beast.

Mr. McKelvey: That was the case that night when they…where at the Planning Board…that Costco says we want it out there.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: And the Planning Board said no.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Ms. Drake: That Gas Station was addressed in the SEQRA portion that was done?

Mr. Wolinsky: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else and thank you for answering those questions.

Mr. Manley: There is a dotted line that kind of cuts in half that center building that’s surrounded in blue there. Is that a lot line or is that a…what exactly is that? It’s cutting the buildings…

Mr. Silverman: Maybe there is a little confusion on the graphics here, just so we can all understand what it is. The blue outline is the physical building itself.

Mr. Manley: Correct. 

Mr. Silverman: The yellow outline is the proposed lot line.

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Silverman: O.K. You can see how close it is to the building here, it runs right along the sidewalk as a matter of fact of the JC Penney building and then goes out into the parking lot to protect them and give them the car count that’s in this area. 

Mr. Manley: But then you have a dotted line that goes east and west…no.

Mr. Donovan: Up and down.

Mr. Manley: Up and down.

Mr. Silverman: This one?

Chairperson Cardone: No, no. It goes straight up and down.

Mr. Silverman: This one?

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Hughes: Right there.

Mr. Manley: Correct. It’s cutting that building in half. Is that a lot line?

Mr. Silverman: No, that’s a match line on the engineer’s drawings. The drawing is so large that this is a match line that they use. So when you hang it up together you’ve got to tape it along that line.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Silverman: It was two pieces of paper, that’s all that is but this area is the area that generates the need or the quantity of area for the side yard variance. It’s not like the lot line is way over in here and it’s way out in here. This is just to graphically show that if the lot line is here, this is what the Code says has to be. This building would have to be set here and this building would have to be set there. That’s what it shows. 

Mr. Hughes: I’m not working on that; I just have concerns about the separations.

Ms. Eaton: When JC Penney has a store in a Galleria do they have to own that property, within the Galleria?

Mr. Wolinsky: I don’t know for that one but I know, for example, in the Poughkeepsie Galleria I know that Macy’s owns that pad and I think there probably at least one or two others. In the Middletown Galleria I am sure that one or more of those own those pads. I am sure there are places in the Town of Newburgh, you guys (to Code Compliance) may know…

Mr. Canfield: Target has a zero.

Mr. Wolinsky: Target has a zero lot line. You guys granted the variance for that. So it is a common, a very common occurrence. Again, most municipalities just have it handled through the ZBA, whether that’s the best way to do it or not, I’m not sure, but that’s what goes on, so. There are tons of examples across the Hudson Valley and New York State.

Ms. Eaton: Thank you.

Mr. Silverman: Even in Harriman Commons, the zero lot line is between the Wal-Mart and the Home Depot. It’s exactly the same circumstance.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any comments or questions from the public? Yes?

Please go to the microphone.

Ms. Gennarelli: And just identify yourself again, please.

Chairperson Cardone: For the record.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Ghikas: Gene Ghikas. When you say proposed common walls what are we taking about? I’m in the dark (inaudible)…what is a common wall?

Mr. Silverman: A common wall is a tenant…one wall that separates two tenancies…this wall, which consists of a three-hour masonry partition.

Mr. Ghikas: Masonry?

Mr. Silverman: Yes, masonry partition, three-hour rated both sides of this building are fully sprinklered.

Ms. Drake:  Three-hour rated for fire?

Mr. Silverman: Yes, maam.

Ms. Drake: I just wanted to clarify that the hour rating was for fire.

Mr. Ghikas: I’m confused…go over it again.

Mr. Silverman: All right. Basically there is a common wall, which means a wall that separates two separate tenancies. That tenancy is a three-hour fire partition. If I remember correctly in the code, it’s a two-hour that’s required. But because it becomes a 12-inch masonry it’s actually three hours so it’s better than the building code asks for and then both sides of the building, this floor and this entire complex are fully sprinklered with their own independent systems. 

Mr. Ghikas: Well why is it that on my three-lot subdivision, they made me put up brick retaining walls to separate?

Mr. Silverman: Well, according to the building code and I’m, again, I’m not familiar with your particular problem but it depends upon what it says in the building code and the building inspector will upon reading the code determine, all right, which type of wall whether it’s one-hour, two-hours, three-hours. There are many, many variations of it and many variances, not to code but different ways to do different things. Sometimes walls are created with special sheet rock walls called shaft walls, other times they are done in masonry, other times they’re done in staggered studs. The underwriters have a whole series of books that tell you the type of wall construction that you can use on fire-tested systems.

Mr. Ghikas: What they told me was that if I didn’t put up a brick retaining wall I couldn’t sell my other parcels.

Mr. Silverman: I don’t know the circumstances and I….

Mr. Ghikas: You’ve got the code enforcement man here…

Mr. Canfield: Gerry Canfield, Fire Inspector, I believe what Mr. Ghikas is referring to on your sub-division because of the elevation difference there was retaining walls. This is what Mr. Silverman is explaining is something entirely different. What he is explaining is a separation where you have…it’s a structural, O.K., part of the building itself. 

Mr. Ghikas: O.K. All right and you’re telling me that I’m mine it was a different one?

Mr. Canfield: Gee, I believe I was there. 

Mr. Ghikas: Because of the elevation?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, it was a retaining wall, which is outside. A retaining wall, the purpose of a retaining wall is to hold back earth. O.K.?  The separation walls that Mr. Silverman is talking about is internal walls, they’re structural, they’re a part of the building where the wall that you are talking about is a retaining wall, it’s not part of a building.

Mr. Ghikas: But what about all the homes up on Hilltop, they’re sloped up, how come they’re not retaining walls built there?   

Mr. Canfield: I can’t answer that question. I’m just explaining that on your scenario that was a requirement of the Planning Board, which is something totally different from what we’re discussing tonight.

Mr. Ghikas: Has the Planning Board O.K.’d everything up into here, before the Zoning Board? Has the Planning Board…?

Chairperson Cardone: Preliminary site approval, yes.

Mr. Ghikas: They have site plan approval?

Chairperson Cardone: Preliminary site plan approval.

Mr. Ghikas: But everything has been approved?

Chairperson Cardone: Preliminary site plan approval. Yes. Do we have any other comments? Any other comments from the Board? I would entertain a motion to keep the Public Hearing open.

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Ms. Drake: O.K. There was one other item that we had asked for that we didn’t, from last meeting that we haven’t discussed yet. I can do that now?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Ms. Drake: And when we’re talking about the entrance and the sign on 52 and Meadow Hill Avenue, we were asking what the lights would be on that? And we asked you what the wattage would be and you said you didn’t know but you would get us that information also. 

Mr. Silverman: It’s landscape lighting basically that’s buried in the beds within the shrubbery and then shines up. I will get you the wattage on the bulbs. They are probably 150-watt bulbs.

Ms. Drake: It was just asked and it was something that wasn’t provided so I’m just…

Mr. Silverman: That’s all, its common landscape lighting.

Mr. McKelvey: It shines just directly on the sign?

Mr. Silverman: Only on the sign.

Ms. Drake: O.K. 

Chairperson Cardone: Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight’s applications and I would ask in the interest of time if you would step out into the hallway and we’ll call you back in shortly. This should not take a long time.   

(Time Noted – 9:46 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2008               (Time Noted – 10:04 PM)

OTHER BOARD BUSINESS

Chairperson Cardone: We had another item added to the agenda and that was the request by Mr. Manley to go into Executive Session with counsel to discuss the possible litigation.

Mr. Manley: I would make a motion that at this point the Zoning Board go into Executive Session to discuss potential litigation of the Town of Newburgh Zoning Board against the Town of Newburgh Planning Board.

Mr. Donovan: We need a second.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Do I do a roll call on this?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Sure.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried and that means…

Mr. Donovan: That you’ll all have to leave again.

Chairperson Cardone: Sorry.

  (Time Noted – 10:06 PM)

ZBA MEETING – FEBRUARY 28, 2008               (Time Noted – 11:20 PM)

RESUMPTION OF OTHER BOARD BUSINESS

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to come out of Executive Session?

Mr. Manley: I’ll make a motion we come out of Executive Session.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor? 

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. In our discussion in Executive Session the consensus of the Board is that we will draft a letter to the Planning Board to communicate our concerns with the way the Sembler matter was handled. 

Mr. Hughes: Could we get an addendum on that, send a carbon copy to all Boards and all Board Members? So that they get (inaudible)

Mr. Manley: I would make a motion with specific detail as to the Board’s displeasure with the way that the Sembler matter was handled and the Zoning Board having jurisdiction to rule on that matter and that matter being overruled by the Planning Board and I think that we really need to include that the Board, if the Board feels as a whole when this motion is made that our decision should have been the decision that stood and that they did not have the authority to do that. And, that an Article 78 against the Planning Board would really not serve the taxpayers of the Town of Newburgh in a manner that would be fair to them but they should be put on notice and the Town Board should be aware of that displeasure of the Zoning Board. And that would be my motion that we send them a very strong worded letter.

Mr. Hughes: I would point blank ask them to rescind and reverse the decision put it where it belongs. 

Ms. Drake: I second the motion on the letter.

Chairperson Cardone: On the including rescinding?

Mr. Hughes: The worst they can tell us is no. Maybe they’ll come to their senses. 

Ms. Drake: I don’t know about that.

Mr. Manley: Honestly, Ron, I don’t think that rescinding is going to be an option; really the only option would be an Article 78.

Mr. Hughes: That’s unfair to the taxpayers. You’ll incur a lot of money and end up with maybe no results whatsoever or are at the same way you are now. If they were asked to come to their responsibilities the worst they can tell you is no. I mean we’re bending over backwards here. I’m not going to bend over forwards on this thing. This is crazy. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right now though, Jim, you’re making a motion that we would send a letter to the Planning Board to communicate our concerns, is that correct?

Mr. Manley: Correct. And, in addition to the letter going to the Planning Board, I believe it should also…

Chairperson Cardone: It would also go to the Town Board.

Mr. Manley: The Town Board Members should be carbon copied on that.

Mr. Hughes: So, the Town…

Ms. Eaton: And each of the Planning Board members?

Mr. Manley: Yes as well as the Planning Board members individually.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: Absolutely.

Ms. Drake: And that is what I am seconding.

Chairperson Cardone: That is the motion you are seconding?

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Discussion.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Are we going to do a roll call or …?

Chairperson Cardone: Discussion? 

Ms. Gennarelli: …or discussion?

Chairperson Cardone: You had more to say?

Mr. Hughes: I really don’t think that that’s enough. I don’t think that that’s enough. I don’t think you are going to get any results whatsoever either positive or negative. I think it will be a letter and it will be stuffed in a file somewhere and we’ll be no further ahead.

Mr. Manley: Well honestly I think that everybody on the Town Board is going to know after they get this letter exactly how everybody on this Board feels. I think the public is going to know exactly how this Board feels and stands and that we as a group feel that our authority was usurped under Town Law and under the General Municipal Law and it serves, litigation among two Town entities is going to serve no purpose but run up legal bills into the tens of thousands of dollars. I think that this type of action can be handled internally between the Town Board and the Planning Board and if necessary, maybe the Town Board has to enact some sort of laws or controls to prevent this from happening again in the Planning Board but that’s their responsibility as elected officials to do that. Our responsibility is to the people of the Town of Newburgh and interpreting the zoning and letting the Town Board know when there is an issue or problem and that’s exactly what we are doing. The ball rests in their court to really take action or not take action. They may not agree with us.

Mr. McKelvey: But you’re letting them know.

Mr. Manley: Absolutely.

Mr. Hughes: Something is wrong that went on here and they should know about it.

Chairperson Cardone: Any further discussion on that motion? We are ready for our vote.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. The letter will be drafted to the Planning Board and to the Town Board Members.

Chairperson Cardone: We have another item. I have a communication from Darren Doce. I received an area variance for the above referenced parcel on August the 23rd, 2007 that was filed in the Town Clerk’s Office on October 2nd, 2007. The variances were as follows: a variance allowing a front yard setback of 32.33 feet where 40 feet is required, 2) a variance allowing a lot area of 12,000 sq ft where 12,500 sq ft is required. Due to the collapse in the financial market it has been extremely difficult to secure a mortgage over the past six months. Therefore I would like to request a six-month time extension to the approval received. If you have any questions or comments, please feel free to contact me, Darren Doce.

Ms. Drake: I make a motion that we grant the extension for an additional six-months.

Mr. Hughes: Second. One time only?

Chairperson Cardone: That’s all that’s allowed by the regulations.

Mr. McKelvey: That’s all that’s allowed. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Is there any other business? 

Mr. Hughes: I would just like to thank the Board for listening to what I had to say about the situation that arose. I hope that we can make a way that that can never happen again.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else?

Ms. Gennarelli: The minutes?

Chairperson Cardone: I haven’t had a chance to read all them. I don’t know about anybody else, they were very lengthy.

Mr. Hughes: I move we hold them off until next month.

Chairperson Cardone: I think it would be best if we vote on that next month.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we close.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Aye All.

Chairperson Cardone: The meeting is closed.
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